Exact Globe & Exact Globe+

User Guide

Inventory

422

www.exact.com

Exact Globe & Exact Globe+

Despite the continued efforts of Exact to ensure that the information in this document is as complete and up-to-date as possible, Exact cannot be held accountable for the correctness and/or completeness and/or specific applicability of the published and/or requested information in this document. The extraction and use of information from this document remains at all times completely within the user's own risk.

Exact Group B.V. shall not be liable for the examples included and for the procedures described in this book, neither is Exact liable for any ensuing damage of any nature whatsoever.

No part of this book may be reproduced and/or transmitted in any form by means of print photocopy, microfilm or any other means, without the prior written consent of Exact Group B.V.

© Copyright Exact Group B.V. All rights reserved. All trademarks mentioned herein belong to their respective owners. Exact Software ® is a registered trademark of Exact Group B.V.

CONTENTS

WEL	VELCOME TO EXACT GLOBE NEXT AND EXACT GLOBE+!					
1.	INTRODUCTION	1				
2.	SETTING UP	2				
2.1	Inventory Settings	3				
2.2	Item Data Settings	7				
2.3	Purchase Settings	8				
2.4	Order Settings	10				
2.5	General Ledger Settings	13				
2.6	Numbers Settings	15				
3.	PREPARING WAREHOUSES AND ITEMS FOR USE	17				
3.1	Defining Warehouses	18				
3.2	Defining Item Groups	19				
3.3	Defining Units of Measurement	21				
3.4	Defining Assortments	22				
3.5	Defining Serial/Batch Numbers	24				
3.6	Creating Items	27				
3.7	Batch Update of Existing Items	30				
3.8	Recoding Items	34				
3.9	Copying Items	35				
3.10	Creating and Maintaining Shipping Methods	36				
4.	INVENTORY MANAGEMENT	38				
4.1	Stock Count	39				
4.2	Purchasing Process	43				
4.3	Sales Process	51				
4.4	Internal Use	57				
4.5	Interbranch Transfers	64				
4.6	Location transfers	69				
4.7	Inventory Costing	71				
5.	MANAGEMENT INFORMATION	79				
5.1	Stock Position	80				
5.2	Shortage	82				
5.3	Deliverable from Stock	83				
5.4	Item Transactions	84				
5.5	Flow of Goods	85				
5.6	G/L Analysis - Item / Warehouse	86				

5.7	Profit Calculation	87
5.8	Audit Trail	88
5.9	Assortments	89
5.10	List of Serial/batch Numbers	90
5.11	Delivered Serial/batch Numbers	91
5.12	Reserved Serial/batch Numbers	92
5.13	Expired Serial/batch Numbers	93
6.	ADVANCED FEATURES	94
6.1	Using External Numbering	95
APP	ENDIX 1: PRODUCT UPDATE CHANGES	104

WELCOME TO EXACT GLOBE NEXT AND EXACT GLOBE+!

This guide provides the information you need to work effectively with Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+. It is part of the series of user manuals for Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+. The goal of this documentation is to help you to get quickly acquainted with the product and the possibilities it offers. It will help all users, especially those without much experience with our software, to get started with and benefit from the product straightaway.

Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ is an integrated software solution; its modules of related business processes function together in an integrated manner. Besides the user manuals, there are several information sources, related to the software, available to you. You can access online help documents on Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ features while working with the software by just pressing the F1 key. The list of help document also contains release notes related to the product. They inform you of the improvements and functional additions in the various releases of the product.

You can also access the help documents, release notes and other related documents online through the Exact Customer Portal on www.exact.com. The Customer Portal is a protected part of the Exact Software internet site, which has been specially developed to provide you with information and to help you get the maximum yield from your software. This portal informs you about our contacts, downloads, FAQs, and the latest product news. We invite you to use the portal as often as you wish!

Thank you for using Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ and this user manual!

Note:

This user manual contains information applicable to both Exact Globe and Exact Globe+. However, the screens displayed are Exact Globe screens.

1. INTRODUCTION

Inventory is among the most important process for any business. Inventory is also closely related to other business processes like the purchase process, the sales process, and the invoicing process.

The **Inventory** module of Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ allows you to monitor and record incoming (receiving, positive stock count) and outgoing (fulfillment, negative stock count) inventory transactions, manage and keep track of the stock movement and stock levels for the respective warehouses, set up replenishment methods, implement stock valuation and adjustments, generate invoices, and facilitate reconciliation of receipts.

Being a complete ERP package, Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ incorporates and integrates the data flow of all the business processes involved with the inventory processes. Therefore, the information presented by Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ reflects the overall picture of the inventory processes within the business organization.

The advantages of the Inventory module are:

- Flexible set-up of basic inventory and warehouse management settings Basic inventory business rules, such as replenishment methods, stock valuation methods and storage identification, can be set up using the **Inventory** module.
- Efficient tracking, recording and control of stock movement All inventory transaction history is recorded and can be viewed per respective item. An accurate record of inventory transaction history is important because it will be used as data for auditing purposes and inventory management processes.

Efficient management of stock
 By setting up the basic inventory management and warehouse management methods, it is easier to
 manage common inventory operations like the replenishment of stock, and the fulfillment of goods.
 Efficient management of stock ensures that an optimal supply is available as needed, and that
 goods are fulfilled according to customer delivery dates.

• Simplify calculation of complex stock valuation methods Stock valuation is conducted at periodic intervals to evaluate the value of current inventory and assets. The calculations are usually complex, and require a high level of accuracy. The **Inventory** module helps simplify the stock valuation process by automating the calculation.

• Different types of reports to assist strategic decisions and financial analysis Reports are available for managers to help them in strategic planning and financial analysis of inventory. Several basic reports are available, such as stock positions report, shortage report, item transactions report, flow of goods report, general ledger analysis for the item and warehouse and profit calculation report.

This manual is based on Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ license containing **Inventory Management** and **E-Warehouse Management**.

This user manual will cover the following chapters:

- Chapter 1: Introduction
- Chapter 2: Setting Up
- Chapter 3: Preparing Warehouses and Items for Use
- Chapter 4: Inventory Management
- Chapter 5: Management Information
- Chapter 6: Advanced Features

2. SETTING UP

Before you can use the **Inventory Management and E-Warehouse Management** module, you need to first set up the modules. These settings will affect the stock valuation method, authorization for internal use request and interbranch transfers, fulfillment of internal use request and interbranch transfers, and the receiving process for interbranch transfers. The settings relevant to inventory and warehouse management are as follows:

- Inventory settings
- Item data settings
- Purchase settings
- Order settings
- General ledger settings
- Numbers settings

2.1 INVENTORY SETTINGS

Inventory transactions include receiving items into the warehouse, delivering items from the warehouse, and managing inventory in the warehouse. The inventory settings are defined at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, under **Settings** (on the left), click **Inventory settings**.

Inventory settings	
Entry	
Valuation method per item	
Valuation method	Standard cost price (Classic)
Stock valuation as from last revaluation	
Cost price and stock valuation per warehouse	
Stock valuation: Update make item cost price.	
💯 Authorise	
- Internal use	
Interbranch transfers	
Fulfilment	
Warehouse locations	
Costs: Check related purchase order	
Counts: Check free stock	No
Interbranch transfers: Check free stock	No
💯 Interbranch transfers	
Use intermediate warehouse	
Receipt labels	
	Logbook Save Close

Entry section

Valuation method per item

Select the check box to enable different valuation methods for different items. Valuation method is used in the stock valuation process to assess the value of current inventory. This function allows stock valuation for an item based on the valuation method defined in item maintenance (**Valuation method** under the **Financial** tab at Inventory \rightarrow Items \rightarrow Maintain).

Valuation method

Select the valuation method you want to use in your stock valuation and stock revaluation. The selected valuation method will be the default method for stock valuation and stock revaluation. This box is enabled only if the **Valuation method per item** check box is not selected.

The difference between these two methods is that the option selected at **Valuation method** (all options except **Standard cost price (Classic)**) applies to all items whereas if you select **Valuation method per item**, you can specify the individual valuation method for each item separately.

Stock valuation as from last revaluation

Select the check box to use the last revaluation transaction as the starting point for stock valuation. The number of inventory transactions increases every year, and this could affect the performance of the system as when it is processing stock valuation, taking a longer time to complete the process. This option aims to improve the processing time.

In order to get an accurate stock value using this function, you should use it in the following sequence in the stock valuation procedure:

- 1. Register all transactions
- 2. Logistics reconciliation
- 3. Stock valuation
- 4. Stock revaluation
- 5. Close the financial period

Cost price and stock valuation per warehouse

Select the check box to value inventory per warehouse. This means the cost price for each item is valued based on the item transactions per warehouse. This function is applicable when different warehouses are accountable for their own operations. The items in different warehouses may incur different level of cost (for example insurance, transportation, and import duty) which results in different stock values across warehouses.

Stock valuation: Update make item cost price

The logic that will be applied when performing stock valuation at Inventory \rightarrow Warehouse management \rightarrow Stock valuation for make items when selecting or disabling the setting in combination with the **Cost price and stock valuation per warehouse** setting is summarized in the following:

- Enabling both the Stock valuation: Update make item cost price and the Cost price and stock valuation per warehouse settings will update the cost price of the item per warehouse. If the stock valuation is performed for the main warehouse, the cost price of the item will be updated instead.
- Enabling the Stock valuation: Update make item cost price setting but disabling the Cost price and stock valuation per warehouse setting will update the cost price of the item.

Note:

The setting is enabled only when **Average purchase** price is selected at **Valuation method** or the **Valuation method per item** setting is enabled.

Authorise section

Internal use

Select the check box to make authorization of internal use requests a mandatory process before the requests can be fulfilled. This function is available only if you have the **E-Internal Usage** module.

Interbranch transfers

Select the check box to make authorization of interbranch transfers a mandatory process before the transfers can be fulfilled. This function is available only if you have the **E-Warehouse Management** module.

Fulfillment section

Warehouse locations

Select the check box to enable the use of warehouse locations in your warehouse. This function is available only if you have the **E-Warehouse Location** module.

Warehouse locations are uniquely identified locations within a warehouse. For a big warehouse, the identification is accurate to the specific building, area, rack, and storage unit. Warehouse locations can be used to identify whether a location is used for receiving or/and issuing items, and also to define the attributes of the inventory, such as pick or bulk items, and whether the location is allocated for fixed, multiple, or variable item.

Before you can enable the **Warehouse locations** check box, you should ensure that the proper procedures have been implemented in the following sequence:

- 1. Set the stock of all items to zero by creating a stock count with the new quantity zero.
- 2. Select the Warehouse locations check box.
- 3. Create a stock count with the correct actual quantity per warehouse location.

Costs: Check related purchase order

Select the check box to enable the checking of linked purchase orders during the fulfillment of internal use requests which involve cost items. Cost items are items that have a profit and loss ledger linked as the stock ledger in item maintenance (under the **Financial** tab at Inventory \rightarrow Items \rightarrow Maintain). This function is available only if you have the **E-Internal Usage** module.

The purpose of this checking is to ensure that the linked purchase order is already printed before you can fulfill the internal use request. This is to ensure that the purchase order is approved by a higher authority and a copy is sent to the supplier, before the items requested can be delivered to fulfill the request.

If this check box is not selected, the message "Not printed: Linked purchase order" will be displayed when you attempt to fulfill an internal use request without first printing the linked purchase order.

Counts: Check free stock

Select an option at **Counts: Check free stock** to determine how the system reacts to negative free stock during stock count. The quantity to be reduced for negative stock counts is a negative value under the **Difference** column in the stock count entry screen. This setting is available only if you have the **Inventory Management** module. This setting is only applicable when the **Check stock** check box is selected at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, under **Order settings**. For more information on stock count, see *4.1 Stock Count*.

- If the **Counts: Check free stock** is set to **No**, upon authorizing (if authorization is mandatory) or processing a negative stock count, the quantity to be reduced will be validated against the physical stock quantity without any reference to the free stock quantity. It is then possible that the free stock is a negative amount when the quantity to be reduced is more than the free stock quantity.
- If the **Counts: Check free stock** is set to **Yes**, upon authorizing (if authorization is mandatory) or processing a negative stock count, you are only allowed to enter a quantity that is less than or the same as the free stock quantity. If you enter and save a quantity that exceeds the free stock quantity, you will see a message "Must be less than or equal to : Free stock".

• If the **Counts: Check free stock** is set to **Show warnings**, upon authorizing (if authorization is mandatory) or processing a negative stock count, you are able to enter and save a quantity that exceeds the free stock quantity. If you enter and save a quantity that exceeds the free stock quantity, a warning message "This process will result in negative free stock. Continue?" will be displayed. You can then select to continue or cancel the operation. If you choose to continue the operation, it is then possible that the free stock is a negative amount when the quantity to be reduced is more than the free stock quantity.

Interbranch transfers: Check free stock

Select an option at **Interbranch transfers: Check free stock** to determine how the system reacts to free stock during creation, authorization and fulfillment of interbranch transfers. This setting is only available when you have both **Inventory Management and E-Warehouse Management** modules. This setting is only applicable when the **Check stock** check box is selected in **Order settings**.

- If the **Interbranch transfers: Check free stock** is set to **No**, the quantity to be reduced or moved will be validated against the physical stock quantity without any reference to the free stock quantity. It is then possible that the free stock is a negative amount when the quantity to be transferred is more than the free stock quantity.
- If **the Interbranch transfers: Check free stock** is set to **Yes**, you are only allowed to enter a quantity that is less than or the same as the free stock quantity. If you enter and save a quantity that exceeds the free stock, you will see a message "Must be less than or equal to: Free stock".
- If the **Interbranch transfers: Check free stock** is set to **Show warnings**, you are able to enter and save a quantity that exceeds the free stock quantity, but a warning message "This process will result in negative free stock. Continue?" will be displayed. You can then select to continue or cancel the operation. If you choose to continue the operation, it is then possible that the free stock is a negative amount when the quantity to be transferred is more than the free stock quantity.

Interbranch transfers section

Use intermediate warehouse

Select the check box to use an intermediate warehouse for interbranch transfers. This function will only be available if you have the **E-Warehouse Management** module. When this check box is selected, Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ will automatically create the **Transport** warehouse as the intermediate warehouse. Therefore, there is an extra step of receiving the items from an intermediate warehouse.

The purpose of having a transit warehouse is to split the fulfillment transaction in the issuing warehouse from the receiving transaction in the receiving warehouse. By doing this, you will be able to reflect the status of the item in transit between the issuing warehouse and the receiving warehouse.

Receipt labels

Select the check box to enable printing of item labels for interbranch transfer receipt. Receiving labels are used to identify the items received so that they can be properly processed and stored away. Receiving labels usually contain information, such as the item code, receipt date, order number, and the supplier.

2.2 ITEM DATA SETTINGS

In order to identify the inventory in your warehouse and analyze item information in reports (such as the revenue generated, ABC analysis, and customer credit balance), you can set up assortments in the item data settings. To define the item data settings, go to System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, and then click **Item data settings**.

tem data setting	S					
Assortments						
Product Line		~ 🗸	,	Assortment 6		ی 🍾
Product Group		۷ ۷	>	Assortment 7		2
Market Segment		۷ 🗸	,	Assortment 8		2
Target Group		۷ 🗸	,	Assortment 9		2
Internal products		۷ 🗸	->	Assortment 10		ع
Person: Plannin Working day	STANDAARDUUF					
Public holiday	WPH 💪					
Bar codes						
Certificate	0000000					
					Logbook Save	× <u>C</u> lose

Assortments section

For the Inventory Management and E-Warehouse Management modules, only the settings in the Assortments section will be relevant for item data.

Assortments are used to categorize different types of items that share certain common properties. Assortments and its properties are user-defined. You can use assortments to classify the inventory for better item management, warehouse management, and reporting purposes. For example, in materials resource planning or stock valuation for a specific group of items, you can use assortments to select the group of items you want instead of generating the data for each item. Assortments do not have a financial impact on the item and inventory transactions.

To create assortments:

- 1. Click ¹/₂ to display the **Assortments screen**.
- 2. Click + New.
- 3. Type a code and description for the new assortment.
- 4. Click **Save** to save the new assortment. The new assortment will be displayed in the **Assortments** screen.
- 5. Click Close to exit.

2.3 PURCHASE SETTINGS

Purchase settings determine how inventory is processed during the receipt of purchase orders. The settings that are related to inventory and warehouse management in purchase settings are settings for receiving of purchase orders. To define the purchase settings, go to System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, and then click **Purchase settings**.

Purchase settings					
Entry					
Notify if purchase price > cost price					
Order performance dates					
Purchase agents only					
Generate purchase order : Set PO date to creation date					
Muthorise					
Purchase orders					
Authorise from	EUR				
Blanket purchase orders					
RTV orders					
Receipt					
Assign serial/batch numbers					
Block batch numbers automatically					
Receipt labels					
Receiving slips					
Exchange rate based on receipt date					
Use multiple layouts					
New line: Add to purchase order					
	Logbook Save Close				

Receipt section

The settings under this section determine whether you need to assign unique serial or batch numbers, whether you can block batch number automatically, print receiving labels, and receiving slips upon receipt of purchased items. The settings in the receipt section allow you to define the things you would want to do upon receiving the items.

Assign serial or batch numbers

Select the check box to make it mandatory for every purchase receipt to be assigned with a unique serial number. This setting is available only if you have the **E-Serial/Batch** module.

Serial and batch numbers are unique numbers assigned to items for the purpose of identification and tracking. Serial numbers are unique for one unit of item; for example item M1350 with a quantity of 10 will be assigned 10 unique serial numbers, one for each item. Batch numbers are unique for each batch quantity of items; for example, one batch of 10 screws will be assigned one unique batch number.

If you do not select this option, it is not mandatory to assign serial or batch numbers during the receipt of the items. In this case, you can assign serial or batch number later via the item transaction card or upon the delivery of the goods. In order to be able to assign serial or batch numbers to an item, the **Serial** or **Batch** attribute must be enabled in the item maintenance under the **Inventory** tab.

The use of serial or batch items also work concurrently with the settings in **Order settings**, under the **Entry** section at **Selection: Serial/batch numbers**. If the **Selection: Serial/batch numbers** is set to **Manually** and the **Assign serial/batch numbers** check box is selected, then it is possible to reuse the existing serial numbers at the moment of receiving the items by selecting **Yes** to continue when you are prompted the message "Already exists - Continue anyway?".

If the **Selection: Serial/batch numbers** is set to **Valid**, then it is not possible to reuse existing serial numbers and you must define unique serial numbers for the items at the moment of receipt.

If you clear the **Assign serial/batch numbers** check box, then it is possible to receive serial or batch items without assigning serial or batch number to them. You may manually assign the serial or batch numbers at a later stage during the fulfillment of the serial items in the sales process.

Block batch numbers automatically

Select the check box to automatically block batch numbers from being used during the receipt of purchase orders.

Receipt labels

Select the check box to enable the printing of receipt labels upon the receipt of purchased items. Receipts labels are stick-on labels printed with information about the item, such as bar code, product code, product name, serial numbers, and other information, that can be pasted on the items being received for easy identification.

Receiving slips

Select the check box to enable the printing of receiving slips upon the receipt of purchased items. A receiving slip is a document printed with information on what has been actually received. It serves as a proof document to acknowledge the receipt of items.

Exchange rate based on receipt date

Select the check box to enable the system to derive the receipt amount from the exchange rate on the receipt date during purchase order receipt. Otherwise, the receipt amount will be derived from the exchange rate on the purchase order date.

2.4 ORDER SETTINGS

Order settings determine how inventory is processed during fulfillment and shipment of sales orders. The settings that have to be defined for inventory and warehouse management are settings for sales order fulfillment and shipment. To define the order settings, go to System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, and then click **Order settings**.

Quotation					
Discount / Extra charges	5		Authorise quotations		
Entry					
Default warehouse	1 👌 Centraal magazijn		Discount / Extra charges		
Shipping via	TNT 🕰	\$	Change of cost centre	2	
Request type: Service activity	99		Order performance dates		
Item selection	All items	•	Generate project		
Invoice method	Time & material	•	Allocation: Copy project		
Calculate prices	Invoice debtor	-	Representatives only		
Selection: Serial/batch numbers	Manually	-	Skip order header		
Profit calculation	Markup	-	Negative margin check		
Discount calculation	Price list discount + Line discount	-	Logbook		
Credit line risk control	Final invoices	-	Always use default debtor price list		
Fulfilment date basis	Working day	-	Add extra receipt to sales order		Variance 🥱 🔅
Stock check: To be received	Exclusive	-	Drop ship	1	
Stock check: Backorders (Days)					
Authorise					
Sales order			Message if exceeded		
Service order			Exceeding permitted	2	
RMA order			Blanket order		
🌝 Confirm					
Check credit line	V		RMA order	R	
Fulfilment					
Create cost price entry	Sales order debtor		Hours	2	
Check credit line	v		Use multiple layouts		
Use enrichment			Selection: Multiple	2	
New line: Add to sales order	v		Check stock	2	
Shipment					
Generate tracking number					
Selection codes					
Service	40				
Contract	41 🖪				
Web service					
					Logbook Save Ck

Entry section

The order settings in the **Entry** section determine the settings in the sales order entry screen when you create a sales order at Order \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Sales orders. For further details on the three sections in the sales order entry screen, see 2.1 Creating and Maintaining Sales Orders in **E-Sales Order**.

Shipping via

Type or select the shipping method of the sales orders at **Shipping via**. The shipping method defined in this field will be the default whereby this method will be automatically defined at **Shipping via** in the header of sales order entry screens. It is also possible to link the shipping method to a specific debtor (defined at **Shipping via** in the debtor maintenance screen, under the **Financial** tab in the **Advanced** mode, or under the **Logistics** tab in the **Simple** mode). By default, the shipping method linked to the debtor will be filled at **Shipping via** in the sales order header. However, when creating sales orders, the shipping method can be changed. Shipping methods can be created at System \rightarrow Logistics \rightarrow Shipping methods.

Selection: Serial/batch numbers

Select the required option to enable the selection of serial or batch numbers when creating or fulfilling a sales order. The options available are:

- **Manually** This option allows you to manually select the serial or batch numbers. By default, this option is selected.
- Valid This option allows you to select only from a list of available serial or batch numbers linked to existing stock. Available serial or batch numbers are numbers that are not blocked or have not expired.
- All This option allows you to select from all available serial or batch numbers in the system.

Fulfillment section

The order settings in the **Fulfillment** section are for sales order fulfillment (at Order \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Fulfillment).

Create cost price entry

Select the type of debtor to be used in the item transaction card (at Order \rightarrow Items \rightarrow Cards, select the fulfilled item, click **Card**, select the sales order, and click **Our ref.**) after sales orders have been fulfilled, if the sales order debtor and the invoiced debtor are different. The options available for selection are **Sales order debtor** and **Invoice debtor**.

Check credit line

Select the check box to check the total amount of the sales order to be fulfilled against the credit limit of the invoiced debtor before the sales order can be fulfilled. If the total amount of the sales order exceeds the invoiced debtor's credit limit, the sales order cannot be fulfilled. If this check box is not selected, the sales order can be fulfilled even though the total amount of the sales order exceeds the invoiced debtor's credit limit.

Use enrichment

Select the check box to make the **Enrichment** button available at Order \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Picking list. Serial or batch numbers and warehouse location of the items have to be defined prior to using the enrichment feature. For further details on enrichment, see *4.7 Allocating and Enriching Items* in the **E-Sales Order user manual**.

Hours

Select the check box to enable hour items to be fulfilled.

Use multiple layouts

Select the check box to print several layouts at the same time during the fulfillment of sales orders. Multiple layouts are available for delivery notes, order confirmation, and service slips. If this check box is selected, the System \rightarrow Logistics \rightarrow Layouts menu path will be available.

Selection: Multiple

Select the check box to fulfill more than one sales order at the same time. If this check box is not selected, only one sales order can be selected for fulfillment whereby the sales orders have to be fulfilled separately.

Check stock

Select the check box to check the availability of the items in the warehouse before fulfillment. Sales orders cannot be fulfilled if there is insufficient stock in the warehouse, and delivery note will not be printed. If this check box is not selected, sales orders can be fulfilled, and delivery notes will be printed even though the stock level is negative.

Shipment section

Generate tracking number

Select the check box to generate the shipment tracking numbers.

Shipping manifest currency code

Select the currency that is used in StarShip. This information is mandatory.

Note:

This setting is available if the **SE1343 - E-Shipping Manifest Integration** and **SE1200 - E-Order** modules are in the license.

2.5 GENERAL LEDGER SETTINGS

General ledger settings determine how financial transactions are managed in the system. The inventory related general ledger settings allow you to define the default general ledger (G/L) accounts and journal to be used for inventory transactions. To define the general ledger settings, go to System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, and then click **General ledger settings**.

General ledger settings				
Year-end closing process				-
Process balance sheet		Result	Cà.	
Closing offset B/S account	CA			
Opening offset B/S account	C.]		
General ledger				_
Payment differences	🔍 Details	Landed costs	Cà.	
Calculation differences	🔍 Details	Bank costs	👌 Bank charges	
 Accruals and prepayments 	<u> </u>	Production : Costs	Cà.	
> Euro calc dif (Debit)	C.	Production : Revenue	Cà l	
Invoices / items to be received	L.	Production : Waste	Cà l	
 Suspense account : Logistics 	Ca l	Production : Results	Ca l	
Service: Time and material	Ca.	Production : WIP	Ca.	
Service: Contract costs	Ca.	Production: Scrap	Cà l	
Service: Warranty costs	Ca.]		
📷 Journal				-
 Sales invoice 	👌 Verkoop	 Project (Realizations) 	Č.	
 Cash journal (POS/Direct invoices) 	👌 Kas	 Depreciation 	Cà.	
 Item transactions 	G.	 Work in progress 	Cà.	
Purchase journal (Electronic invoicing	D L			
📷 Default				- 1
Tax & Discount calculation	Tax calculated over gross invoid	e amount	-	
Cost centre allocation method	Allocate using general ledger ac	counts from upper level cost centre	 ▼	
 Payment condition: Debtor 	👌 30 day credit ter 🔥	Payment condition: Creditor	👌 30 day credit ter 🏌	
ageing				_
Debtor	30 60 90	Creditor	30 60 90	
📷 General				
Allocate screen: Advanced mode				
Invoices / items to be received per ite	m 🗆]		
Matching: Cash flow		•		
Overwrite Offset account	Always	Create offset entry	Г	
Retain statement analytical values		,	Current date	_
,				-
			Logbook Save Clo	

General ledger section

Invoices / items to be received

Type or select the Invoices/items to be received (ITR) general ledger (G/L) account, which is used as a suspense or intermediate account at receipt of items and Invoices / items to be received purchase invoices. The ITR G/L account is used for balancing of double entry. When items received are pending invoice, the financial entry involved will be debit stock G/L account and credit the ITR G/L account. When the invoice is received subsequently, the financial entry will be to debit the ITR G/L account and credit the creditor G/L account. In addition to this, it is also used for receiving of invoice before goods. In this example, the G/L account is also called Items to be received.

Journal section

Item transactions

Type or select the journal which is used to record item transactions.

General section

Invoices / items to be received per item

Select the check box to use different invoices or items to be received (ITR) G/L accounts for different items or item groups. By default, the check box is not selected. This means only one ITR G/L account is used for all items and item groups. In this scenario, the standard ITR G/L account to be used will be based on the default ITR G/L account you have selected at **Invoices / items to be received** under the **General ledger section**.

Note:

If you have selected the check box, you will see the **Invoices / items to be received** field in the item group and item maintenance screens.

2.6 NUMBERS SETTINGS

Numbers settings determine how the sequential numbers for journal entries are generated. In addition, it also allows you to define the start number for various logistics-related documents, such as the delivery notes and interbranch transfer slips. Based on the start number, the subsequent sequential numbers will be assigned to the documents. To define the numbers settings, go to System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, and then click **Numbers settings**.

Numbers settings		
General		
Use external numbering		
Financial		
	First Free Last	Qty. free
General/Cash/Bank journal	1 10000836 10010001	9166
Purchase journal	20000001 20000033 20010001	9969
Accounts		
Range: Start		
Range: End		
Logistics		J
Quotation number	40007	Order number
Sales order number	20075	
Recurring sales order number	29001	
Delivery note number	10034	
Interbranch transfer number	15002	🗖 Delivery note number
Invoice number	1	
Purchase order number	50033]
Blanket purchase order number	55001]
Blanket sales order number	25001]
 Production order number 	PROD 10013]
 Kanban order number 	KANB 1]
RMA order number	22002]
RTV order number	52003]
Group internal use number	27000]
Allow change entry number	V	
	Ì	
		Logbook Save Close

General section

Use external numbering

Select the check box to enable the external numbering functionality in Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+. This feature allows you to use the external numbers in your business documents apart from the standard numbering system based on the **Entry**, **Our reference**, and **Your reference** numbers. Once you have enabled the external numbering functionality, you can define the numbering rules and the number ranges for the external numbers. The system will then assign external numbers for the specific business transactions based on the defined numbering rules and number ranges.

Logistics section

Delivery note number

Type the start delivery order number to be printed on the delivery note. An order can be delivered in several parts or at a different time. As such, there can be several deliveries per order. This number will be automatically updated whenever a delivery note is printed.

Interbranch transfer number

Type the start number to be used in the interbranch transfer. This is a running number and is automatically generated whenever a new interbranch transfer is recorded. Alternatively, you can select the **Delivery note number** check box to use the delivery note number when you record the interbranch transfer.

Note:

Interbranch transfer number is not enabled if you select the Delivery note number check box.

3. PREPARING WAREHOUSES AND ITEMS FOR USE

Before populating Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ with items, you should first define holding areas for your inventory. This is termed as a **Warehouse** in Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+. A warehouse provides characteristics of your holding areas. You can specify the items to be stored in each warehouse. You can also assign different employees to different warehouses to manage it. This is useful as a control measure in your organization.

Apart from that, you should also define the characteristics of your stock items. This allows you to include various different information of the item including the price, the markup, its suppliers or purchasers, the warehouse attributed to it, and other information. Maintaining the information for all these varied characteristics ensures the item will be managed properly. For instance, you can specify whether the item is a sellable item. This ensures that when a sales invoice is created, if a non-sellable item is accidentally chosen, the system will alert you to this.

3.1 DEFINING WAREHOUSES

A warehouse is used to define the location where inventory is stored. It can contain the address of the warehouse as well as assigned employees and items in a particular warehouse. Even if your organization does not have a physical warehouse, it would be beneficial to create one in Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ in order to better reflect the way your inventory is managed. A new installation of Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ will have one warehouse already defined.

Non Maintain warehouses - Exact						- 🗆 🗙	
001							
$+ \mathbf{D} \square \mathbf{v} \ll \mathbf{b} \mathbf{\hat{b}} \land \lor \mathbf{\hat{c}} \mathbf{\hat{w}} \ll \mathbf{a} 0$							
> Warehouse code			Status	Active	•		
> Name			Drop ship				
Basics Wareh	ouse locations	Purchase Sales	In Items	Out Serial/bat	ch Rights		
Address 1							
Address 2							
Address 3							
Postcode		C.					
City							
Phone							
Fax							
State	Cà -						
Country		erlands					
Contact	Cà Dior	Brands					
Invoice address	Q						
Not defined	¥						
Not delined							
WMS	Assign items	Real Item transactions	Counts	Save	+ <u>N</u> ew	X Close	

To create warehouses:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Warehouse management \rightarrow Warehouses.
- 2. Click New. The Maintain warehouses screen will be displayed.
- 3. Type a unique warehouse code and a descriptive name to identify the warehouse. This is mandatory. If **Name** is left blank, it will be automatically filled in with the same details as **Warehouse code**.
- 4. Select a status for the warehouse. This denotes whether the warehouse is in operation or not. Select Active if it is in operation and Blocked if it is not. There may be times when you need to block the warehouse, for instance when the warehouse/business is closed for stock taking activities or when it has received structural damage and is not fit for storing your inventory.
- 5. Under the **Basics** tab, type the address for the warehouse. Although optional, this is useful for differentiating storage locations later.
- 6. Type or select a contact person for this warehouse at **Contact**. This contact person may or may not have rights to the warehouse.
- 7. Click Save to save the information.
- 8. Click **Close** to exit.

Note:

Items stored at this warehouse can be viewed under the **Items** tab. Once you have created your inventory items, you can assign them to each warehouse later.

The **Serial/batch** tab displays information about the inventory for serial or batch items in a particular warehouse. When creating a warehouse, this tab will not show any information as no item has been assigned to the warehouse yet.

Under the **Rights** tab, assign an employee to be responsible for the warehouse. This acts as a control measure for your organization since only authorized employees can make changes to the warehouse. However, you can assign employees only after you have saved other information for the warehouse.

3.2 DEFINING ITEM GROUPS

After creating a warehouse, you are advised to create item groups before creating items. This is to allow you to link each item to an item group in the item maintenance. The item groups enable you to categorize the items for the purpose of financial reporting. Having item groups makes it easier for specifying the general ledger accounts that will be used for recording logistics transactions, such as sales or purchase of items that belong to the respective item groups.

For instance, you may want to specify that items in the "Software" group is to be linked to "Revenue of software" account and "Cost of Goods sold software" account while items in the "Hardware" group is to be linked to the "Revenue of hardware" account and "Cost of Goods sold hardware" account. Linking each item to an item group will ensure that the appropriate financial transactions are carried out.

۹.		001 It	em groups -	Exact			×
001							
+ 🖻 💾 🗩 🖣	f 🖻 🖻 /	ヽ ∨ © ខ					
Item group							
> Code							
Description							
Basics Pu	rchase D	Description	Extra				
Revenue accour	nt		Cà -				
Cost of goods so	old account		[م				
Cost unit			Ca 🛛				
Discount accour	nt		Ca				
					<u>L'</u> <u>S</u> ave	+ <u>N</u> ew	× <u>C</u> lose

3.2.1 Creating item groups

To create item groups:

- 1. Go to System \rightarrow Logistics \rightarrow Item groups.
- 2. Click New. The Item groups screen will be displayed.
- 3. Type a unique number at Item group.
- 4. At Code, type a unique code for the item group. This is mandatory. The code can be the same as the number at Item group.
- 5. Type the description of the item group at **Description**. This is mandatory.
- 6. Under the **Basics** tab, type or select the appropriate accounts at **Revenue account**, **Cost of goods sold account**, and **Discount account**. These are mandatory.
- Under the Purchase tab, type or select the appropriate accounts at Stock account and Price differences account. This account reflects the account whereby the financial transactions of this stock are recorded. These are mandatory.
- 8. Click Save to save the information.
- 9. Click Close to exit.

For **Cost unit** in the **Basics** tab, you may type or select the cost unit to be associated with this item group, if available. A cost unit can be a division of your organization, either geographically or departmental. This is useful when attributing the different parts of your organization to an item group which can be used for measuring performance.

For the **Purchase** tab, you can type or select the Invoices/items to be received (ITR) G/L account to be used for the item group at **Invoices / items to be received** if you have selected the **Invoices / items to be received per item** check box under the **General** section in **General ledger settings**. If you do not define a specific ITR G/L account for the item group, the default ITR G/L account as defined in the **General ledger settings** under the **General ledger** section will be used when items or purchase invoices are received. The **Price differences account** is used to record the difference in prices between the standard cost price as specified by the supplier and the purchase invoice price during the point of purchase.

For the **Extra** tab, **Price list rounding** is used to specify the appropriate rounding off method for the prices of items in this group:

- No rounding This option will not round off any amount.
- Round up This option will round the amount to the next higher number.
- Round down This option will round the amount down to the next lower number.

This can be applied for your organization's policies in rounding off amount for a certain item group. This feature is applied only when the **Round off** button is clicked when maintaining price lists at Order \rightarrow Price management \rightarrow Price lists, if relevant. When a price list for a particular item is clicked, the item will be rounded off according to the price list rounding method specified here.

3.3 DEFINING UNITS OF MEASUREMENT

Defining different units of measurement allows you to use them to reflect different ways your inventory is packaged. For instance, your purchase of keyboards may be in boxes containing 12 pieces in each box. And when it is sold, the keyboards are sold by piece. For this, you can record your purchases by box and sales by pieces using different units of measurement. This is for more effective inventory handling and gives a more accurate reflection of your organization's business.

3.3.1 Creating units of measurement

۹.	001 Units - Exact	-	×
001			
+ 🖻 💾 🗩 🖻) Ê ^ \ © Ø		
> Unit Description]	
Type	Other 🗸		
Active			
Description NL]	
	<u>S</u> ave	New	<u>C</u> lose

To create units of measurement:

- 1. Go to System \rightarrow Logistics \rightarrow Units.
- 2. Click New. The Units screen will be displayed.
- 3. At **Unit**, type a unique name for the unit of measurement. This is mandatory.
- 4. Type the description of the unit at **Description**.
- 5. At **Type**, select the appropriate measurement type. Select **Length**, **Time**, or **Weight** for units that measure length, time, and weight, respectively. Select **Other** for units that are not represented by any of the other options.

- 6. Select the Active check box to activate the unit of measurement. When a unit is Active, it can be used in your business operations. There may be times when you need to make a measurement unit inactive by clearing this check box. This is because you cannot delete an existing measurement unit if it is currently being used. If the unit is not used anymore in the future, you can make it inactive, thereby maintaining past items that use it while preventing future items from using it.
- 7. Click **Save** to save the information.
- 8. Click **Close** to exit.

3.4 DEFINING ASSORTMENTS

Assortments, in Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, are used in grouping or categorizing different types of items that have certain properties in common. The assortments and the properties are user-defined. For example, you can specify "Color" as an assortment for a car. You can then define its properties, such as "Black", "Blue", "Red", and so on.

Assortments can be used in reports as search criteria. This will effectively create reports based on certain assortments that you want to view.

A	- 🗆 🗙	
Assortment 1	Product Line	
Properties		
Code	Description	
+ 0001	Product	
0003	Costs	
0004	Hours	
0005	Contracts	
		-
•		Þ
		× <u>C</u> lose

3.4.1 Creating assortments

To create assortments:

- 1. Go to Inventory → Items → Assortments and type a relevant name for each assortment. You can have up to 10 different assortments.
- 2. Click **Maintain: Properties** to define the assortment's properties.
- 3. Click + New to add new properties to the assortment. The Assortments: Properties screen will be displayed.
- 4. At **Code**, type a unique code for the property. This is mandatory.
- 5. Type the description of the assortment at **Description**.
- 6. Click **Save** to save the property of the assortment.
- 7. Click Close to exit.

Note:

After creating properties for an assortment, you can also edit the details of a property by clicking **Edit** or delete the property by clicking **Delete** after selecting a property.

3.5 DEFINING SERIAL/BATCH NUMBERS

Serial and batch numbers are used primarily for tracking purposes. These numbers are very useful especially when dealing with the quality of the item. If a complaint is received with regards to the item, the serial or batch number can be used to pinpoint its origins so that investigative steps can be taken.

A serial number is unique and is used to identify a single piece of item. A batch number identifies a group of similar items for a particular production run.

3.5.1 Creating serial numbers

	00	1 Serial/batc	h numbers - Exact		×		
001							
▶ 💾 ⊅ 🛠 № ௹ △ ∨ ⓒ 🞯							
Number			Serial/batch				
Description		8					
Blocked							
General Activities Extra Log							
Serial/batch Item code	Ca.		Picture 🔯				
Lot number		Ca.	Notes 🗉				
Start date	16/11/2015		Attachment Ø				
End date							
Supplier	Ca.						
Warehouse	L.						
Location	Ca.		Supplier: Info				
Quantity received			Type, Status				
Quantity used			Address				
Quantity available			1001033				
			City, Country				
			Contact, Phone				
					_		
				MRP Save New Clos			

To create serial numbers:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Serial/batch \rightarrow Serial.
- 2. Click New. The Serial/batch numbers screen will be displayed.
- 3. At **Number**, type a unique serial number for the item. This is mandatory.
- Type the description for the serial number at **Description**. To have the description in a different language, click ^{III}. However, this is available only if the languages are defined at System → General → Settings, under **General settings** in the **Descriptions in list boxes** section.
- 5. If relevant, select the **Blocked** check box to block the serial number from being used.
- 6. Under the **General** tab, type or select the item for the serial number in **Item code**. This will link the serial number to the item and is mandatory.
- 7. At **Lot number**, type or select the lot number the serial number is associated to, if available. Lot numbers are usually batches of item that will contain a range of serial numbers.
- 8. At **Start date** and **End date**, type or select the dates to define the date the serial number takes effect and expires respectively. The start date is mandatory.
- 9. At **Supplier**, type or select the supplier that supplies the item with this serial number, if relevant.
- 10. At **Warehouse**, type or select the warehouse the item with this serial number is stored in. This is mandatory.

- 11. At Location, type or select the location within the warehouse the item will be stored in. This is mandatory and is available if the Warehouse location check box is selected at System → General → Settings, under Inventory settings in the Fulfillment section.
- 12. Click Save to save the serial number.
- 13. Click Close to exit.

Note:

Click **MRP** to view additional information on the movement of the item, such as whether any new stock has been ordered or whether any stock is in transit. The **Item management: Planning** screen for the item with this serial number displays the information.

3.5.2 Copying serial numbers

To create a serial number for another item with similar information, copy the information of an existing item.

To copy serial numbers:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Serial/batch \rightarrow Serial.
- 2. Select the item you want to copy the serial number details from.
- 3. Click **New**. The **Serial/batch numbers** screen will be displayed with the relevant information already filled in.
- 4. Type a unique number and description for the new serial number at **Number**.
- 5. Define new information or edit the existing information.
- 6. Click **Save** to save the new serial number.
- 7. Click Close to exit.

3.5.3 Creating batch numbers

To create batch numbers:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Serial/batch \rightarrow Batch.
- 2. Click New. The Serial/batch numbers screen will be displayed.
- 3. Type a unique batch number for the item at **Number**. This is mandatory.
- Type a description for the batch number at **Description**. To have the description in a different language, click ^{IIII}. However, this is available only if the languages are defined at System → General → Settings, under **General settings** in the **Descriptions in list boxes** section.
- 5. Select the **Blocked** check box to block the batch number from being used.
- 6. Under the **General** tab, type or select the item for the batch number. This will link the batch number to the item and is mandatory.
- 7. Type or select the lot number the batch number is associated to, if available, at Lot number.
- 8. Type or select the start and end dates at **Start date** and **End date** to define the dates the batch number takes effect and expires respectively. The start date is mandatory.
- 9. Type or select the supplier that supplies the item with this batch number, if relevant, at **Supplier**.
- 10. Type or select the warehouse and the location the item with this serial number is stored in at **Warehouse**. This is mandatory.
- 11. Type or select the location within the warehouse the item will be stored in at Location. This is mandatory and is available if the Warehouse location check box is selected at System → General → Settings, under Inventory settings in the Fulfillment section.
- 12. Click **Save** to save the batch number.
- 13. Click Close to exit.

Note:

Click **MRP** to view additional information on the movement of the item, such as whether any new stock has been ordered or whether any stock is in transit. **The Item management: Planning** screen for the item with this batch number displays the information.

3.5.4 Copying batch numbers

To create a batch number for another item with similar information, you can copy the information of an existing item.

To copy batch numbers:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Serial/batch \rightarrow Batch.
- 2. Select the item you want to copy the batch number details from.
- 3. Click **New**. The **Serial/batch numbers** screen will be displayed with the relevant information already filled in.
- 4. Type a unique number and description for the new batch number at **Number** and **Description**. The **Number** field is mandatory.
- 5. Type new information or edit the existing information.
- 6. Click **Save** to save the new batch number.
- 7. Click Close to exit.

Note:

In certain situations, you may need to assign multiple serial and batch numbers for the corresponding items. In order to ensure that you assign the right serial and batch numbers for the right items quickly, you can use the feature to mask serial and batch items when performing production order receipts, purchase order receipts, fulfillment of sales orders for items linked to drop ship warehouse, and when processing stock counts. With this feature, the serial and batch numbers are proposed according to a predefined mask. The masking is set up for each item by defining the necessary information at **Mask** and **Increment factor** in the **Serial/batch** tab of the item maintenance screen.

3.6 CREATING ITEMS

Items are the heart of your organization as they determine the success of your organization. For this reason, Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ allows you to keep a lot of information related to an item.

3.6.1 Creating items

٩			001 Ite	ms - Exact				-	□ ×
001									
+ 6 8 5 * 9		3 🛗 🛛							
> Item code			Type	Stand	lard		•		
Description			Status	Active			▼		
Search code			From		/2015 💼 to				
Basics Purchas	se/ Sales Financial	Activity	Inventory	Serial/batch	Manufacturing	g Doc.	Analysis E	xtra	Log
Sls. unit, Price	· 🗅	0.0	00 EUR Picture	e 0	3				
Classification ESL			 Extra c 	lescription (1				
Sales VAT code	0 🗅	Standard VAT code							
Cost price		EUR/-							
Markup		96							
Purchase price		EUR/-							
Assortments			Attri	outes					
Product Line		1			Divisi	ibla			
Product Group			 Text 	A.		iore			
Market Segment			▼ Text						
Target Group			•				^		
Internal products			•						
Assortment 6				ption NL			× .		
		1	Desci	puorrive					
Created:17/11/2015 By:Dion Brands Modified:17/11/2015 By:Dion Brands									
	ð 🔛	-	6			8	+		×
	raph <u>M</u> RP	Card		Purchase or	Sales orders	Save	New		Close

To create items:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Items \rightarrow Maintain.
- 2. Click New. The Items screen will be displayed.
- 3. At **Item code** and **Description**, type a unique code and a description respectively for the item. These are mandatory.
- 4. Type a search code which is used when searching for items. If this is left blank, it will be automatically filled in with the code at **Item code**.
- 5. Select an appropriate type for the item at **Type**:
 - Standard A Standard type item allows it for normal business operations where it can be purchased and sold intact.
 - **Bulk issue** A **Bulk issue** type item is used mainly in the manufacturing process. It is purchased for the purpose of creating a final product or enhancing an existing product.
- 6. Select the appropriate status for the item at Status:
 - Active Items with this status can be sold, purchased, manufactured, received, and delivered.
 - **Blocked** Items with this status can be used in sales, stock counts, creating Bill of Materials, and budget scenarios, but cannot be used in sales and purchasing.

- **Discontinued** Items with this status can be used in stock counts, sales, creating Bill of Materials, and budget scenarios, but cannot be used in purchases.
- **Inactive** Items with this status can be used in stock counts, but cannot be used in sales, purchasing, creating Bill of Materials, and budget scenarios.
- Future Items with this status have not been made active but which your organization has details about.
- 7. At **From** and **to**, type or select the appropriate dates to denote the validity of the item. If the start and end dates are specified, it is active within this period only. Typically, it will only have the **From** date specified. This means the item is active from that date onwards. The end date is filled in only to discontinue the item after a certain date.
- 8. Under the **Basics** tab at **SIs. unit**, **Price**, type or select the sales unit and selling price of the item. The sales unit indicates the unit of measurement the item is sold at. For more details, see 3.3 Defining Units of Measurement.
- 9. Type or select a value-added tax code at **Sales VAT code**, where applicable. A VAT code can be defined at System → General → Countries → Tax codes.
- 10. Type the cost price of the item at **Cost price**. The cost price is usually lower than the sales price so that the profit margin will be positive.
- Type or select the assortment(s) that the item is linked to. The assortments available depend on the settings defined at Inventory → Items → Assortments. For more details, see 3.4 Defining Assortments.
- 12. In the **Attributes** section, select the **Text** check box if you want the system to prompt the user to enter a longer description for the item in the **Enter text item** field during transactions involving the item, such as creation of sales or purchase orders and invoices. This allows users to add in their own remarks for the item, the result of which will be shown in the **Long description** column.
- 13. Select the **Divisible** check box to allow the quantity of this item to be in decimals. This check box is enabled only if the item is not a serial item.
- 14. In the **Text** section, you can pre-define additional description that will be displayed in the **Enter text item** field when filling up sales or purchase orders and invoices.
- 15. Type alternative descriptions in different languages, if applicable. This is available only if the **Descriptions in list boxes** section is defined at System → General → Settings, under **General** settings.
- 16. Click **Save** to create the item.
- 17. Click Close to exit.

Markup (the percentage added to the cost price to reach the sales price) or **Margin** (the difference between the cost price and the sales price in percentage) will be automatically displayed depending on the selection at **Profit calculation** at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, under **Order settings**. If no cost price is specified, this will be blank.

The **Purchase price** will be automatically filled in according to the price defined under the **Purchase/Sales** tab. To specify that an item is a purchase item, add a new supplier under the **Suppliers** section. After adding the supplier, the **Buy** check box will be automatically selected under the **Attributes: Purchase** section. The item is then available for purchase.

The **Financial** tab defines where inventory transactions (sale and purchase of goods) for the item are recorded in the financial ledgers. By default, the first item group in the list of item groups that are available in Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ is automatically selected when you create an item. You can still manually change the accounts.

By default, the accounts defined in the item group will be displayed for the relevant account information under the **Financial** section. The mandatory accounts are **Revenue**, **Stock**, and **Cost of goods sold**. The **Revenue** account is the general ledger account where the sales revenue will automatically be credited when the item is sold. The **Stock** account is the general ledger account where the stock is automatically credited when the item is sold, and debited when the item is purchased. The **Cost of goods sold** account is the general ledger account where the cost of sales will automatically be debited when the item is sold.

In the **Financial** section of the **Financial** tab, you can type or select the Invoices/items to be received (ITR) G/L account to be used for the item at **Invoices / items to be received** if you have selected the **Invoices / items to be received per item** check box under the **General** section in **General ledger settings**. If you do not define a specific ITR G/L account for the item, the default ITR G/L account as defined in the **General ledger settings** under the **General ledger** section will be used when items or purchase invoices are received.

3.6.2 Assigning and removing assigned items to warehouses

After creating items, you may want to assign the items to the appropriate warehouses. This allows you to better manage your items and to effectively segregate the usage of your warehouses based on items.

•	E Maintain warehouses - Assign 😑 🔍				
General		_			
Warehouse	01 🔁 Shah Alam (Main)				
Location	In 🔁 In				
Items					
ltem code	Description				
CAS:VG01	Voyage Casing				
CAS:XN01	XploreNet Casing 01				
CAS:XN02	XploreNet Casing 02				
CAS:XN03	XploreNet Casing 03				
CAS:XN04	XploreNet Casing 04	-			
•		Þ			
	Assign	se			

To assign items to a warehouse:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Warehouse management \rightarrow Warehouses.
- 2. Select a warehouse that you want to assign items to.
- 3. Click **Open**.
- 4. In the Maintain warehouses screen, click Assign items.
- At Location in the Maintain warehouses Assign screen, type or select the relevant location within the warehouse that you want to assign items to. This option is available if the Warehouse locations check box is selected under the Fulfillment section of Inventory settings at System → General → Settings. You need to define the location before you can assign items to it.
- 6. Click Assign.
- 7. In the **Maintain warehouses Items** screen, select the relevant item(s) that you want to assign to the warehouse.
- Click Process. In the Maintain warehouses Assign screen, the selected item(s) will be displayed.
- 9. Click Close to exit.

To remove assigned items from a warehouse:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Warehouse management \rightarrow Warehouses.
- 2. Select an existing warehouse that you would like to remove assigned items from.
- 3. Click Open.
- 4. In the Maintain warehouses screen, click Assign items.
- 5. In the **Maintain warehouses Assign** screen, type or select the relevant location within the warehouse that contains the assigned items at **Location**. You need to specify the location before you can remove the item's assignment. You also need to ensure that there is no stock available for the item before you can remove the item's assignment.
- 6. Click Unassign.
- 7. In the **Maintain warehouses Items** screen, select the relevant item(s) to remove their assignment.
- 8. Click Process. In the Maintain warehouses Assign screen, the selected item(s) will be removed.
- 9. Click Close to exit.

3.7 BATCH UPDATE OF EXISTING ITEMS

Now that you have your warehouses filled with your organization's items, there may be times when you need to update the data of multiple items at the same time. This can be due to an increase in shipping charges, for example. As such, the organization decides to increase the sales price for a range of items to absorb the shipping charges. Another example would be if there is a change in company policy whereby the maximum stock level of some items needs to be reduced.

Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ allows you to quickly update selected item information for multiple products to reflect scenarios like the ones above.

For the complete functionality of this feature, it is advisable that you have the Add-ins for Microsoft Excel already installed.

3.7.1 Updating multiple items

There are two types of information that can be updated for multiple items. Updating of item data will affect only the items' individual characteristics, such as the pricing and grouping of the item.

Updating of stock data will affect the stock information, such as stock levels and stock count cycle, of the items within a warehouse. A separate warehouse may have different stock information even for the same item.

3	001 Update items - Maintain	×					
Data selection							
Item data C	Stock data C Items by supplier						
Range							
Item code	Ch, to	🖎 🖻 All					
Attributes	🗌 Sales 🔲 Stock 🔲 Make 🗐 Buy						
	Part Batch Serial Service						
Item group		Ca 🖻 All					
Main warehouse		Ca 🖻 All					
Last sale		🛱 🕅 All					
Main supplier	CA						
Status	Active Type All						
Product Line	Product Group Market Segment						
Target Group	▼ Internal products ▼ Assortment 6 ▼						
Change							
Cost price	New value Cost price * 0.00 % Status New value A	lctive 💌					
Item group	New value 🛛 🖓 🗖 Description New value						
🗆 Unit	New value 🔲 🗖 Type New value S	itandard 🔽					
Stock control	ed New value Yes 🔽 Requires approved supplier New value Y	res 💌					
Classification	ESL New value 👻 🗆 Commissionable New value Y	res 🔻					
Commission r	nethod New value Margin % 0.00 %						
Product Line	Product Group Market Segment						
Target Group	 Internal products Assortment 6 						
Price list assortments							
		• X					
		Show list Close					

To update multiple item data:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Items \rightarrow Maintain.
- 2. Click Batch updates.
- 3. In the **Update items Maintain** screen, under the **Data selection** section, select **Item data** to update information for a range of items.
- 4. Under the **Range** section, define the criteria relevant to the batch updating of items.
- 5. Under the Change section, select the relevant check boxes to change the item data. Select the Cost price check box to update the cost price of item(s) according to the selected pricing scheme. Four options are available at New value:
 - **Calculated cost price** Selecting this will change the cost price to be the same as the total of the calculated cost price plus the percentage that you specify. Having a negative percentage will reduce the total while having it at 0% will cause the cost price to be the same as the calculated cost price. This is relevant if the item is made up of different parts that your organization handles, in particular, involving assembly items or Bill of Materials (BOM). The calculated cost price of an item is the total cost price of its components.
 - **Cost price** Selecting this will change the cost price of the item according to the percentage that you specify. Having a negative percentage will reduce the cost price. For this example, your organization may decide to increase the cost price by 10%.
 - Sales price Selecting this will change the cost price to be the same as the total of the sales price plus the percentage that you specify. Having a negative percentage will reduce the total while having it at 0% will cause the cost price to be the same as the sales price.
 - **Supplier's purchase price** Selecting this will change the cost price to be the same as the total of the supplier's purchase price plus the percentage that you specify. Having a negative percentage will reduce the total while having it at 0% will cause the cost price to be the same as the supplier's purchase price.
- 6. Select the **Stock controlled** check box to update the item to a stock controlled item or non-stock controlled item. This option is available only if **Type** is selected.
- 7. Update the assortments of the items by selecting them at the bottom of the **Change** section.
- 8. Click Show list to display the old and new item data in Microsoft Excel.
- 9. Click ^e Exact Globe Next : Update (under the Add-Ins menu bar) to confirm the information changes to the items in Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+.
- 10. Save and close Microsoft Excel.
- 11. Click Close to exit.

6			001 Upd	ate items - Mainta	in		×
Data selection							
C Item data	Stock data C Items	by supplier					
Range							
Item code			C.	to		Ca.	All I
Attributes	🗆 Sales 🗖 Sto	ck 🗆 Make 🗆 B	luy				
	🗆 Part 🗖 Bat	ch 🗆 Serial 🗆 S	ervice				
Item group			C.	to		Cà	All
Warehouse			CA.				
Last sale				to			All
Main supplier	[CA.				
Status	Active			Type All	•		
Product Line	v P	roduct Group	▼ Market	Segment			
Target Group		nternal products	▼ Assort				
Change							
Default locat	on New value	G	D Pu	rchase order level	New value 0.000		
Maximum st	ock New value 0.00	0	🗆 Tin	ne of delivery - sales	New value 0		
Counting cyc	le New value	0 Days	🗆 Pla	nner	New value	CA	
							Thow list Close

To update stock data of multiple items:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Items \rightarrow Maintain.
- 2. Click Batch updates.
- 3. In the **Update items Maintain** screen, select **Stock data** to update the stock information of items in a particular warehouse.
- 4. Under the **Range** section, define the criteria relevant to the batch updating of items.
- 5. Under the **Change** section, select the relevant check boxes to update the stock information of items described as follows:
 - Default location This is available only if you have selected the Warehouse location check box in the Fulfillment section at System → General → Settings, under Inventory settings. This option allows you to update the default location for placement of the item within a warehouse.
 - Purchase order level This option updates the minimum purchase order level for the items.
 - **Maximum stock** This option updates the maximum quantity allowed of this item in a warehouse.
 - Time of delivery sales This option updates the time of delivery for sales for the item.
 - **Counting cycle** This option updates the counting cycle for the item.
 - **Planner** This option allows you to display the old value and new value at the planner column in the Microsoft Excel report.
- 6. Click **Show list** to display the old and updated information in Microsoft Excel.
- 7. Click ^e Exact Globe Next : Update (under the Add-Ins menu bar) to confirm the information changes to Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+.
- 8. Save and close Microsoft Excel.
- 9. Click Close to exit.

Note:

Updating of stock data can be done to either a single warehouse every time or to all warehouses. This is different from updating of item data whereby you are able to update item information for a range of warehouses.

To update item group of multiple items:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Items \rightarrow Maintain.
- 2. Click Batch updates.
- 3. In the **Update items Maintain** screen, under the **Data selection** section, select **Item data** to update the information for a range of items.
- 4. Under the **Range** section, define the relevant criteria for batch updating.
- Under the Change section, select the relevant check boxes to change the item data. Select the Item group check box, and type or select the new value at New value to update the item group of the item(s) to the selected new item group.
- 6. Click Show list to display the old and new item data in Microsoft Excel. A message "Changed: item group. Link general ledger accounts? Invoices / items to be received: Changing the account will not recode existing transactions to the new account" will be displayed. Click No to continue using the same invoices to be received account. If you click Yes, a message "Depending on the size of your company, this function may take a long time because all files will be checked. Would you like to continue?" will be displayed. From here, click No if you do not want to update the item group, and Yes to update the item group and the invoices to be received account.
- 7. Click Sect Globe Next : Update (under the Add-Ins menu bar) to confirm the information changes to Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+. The following condition must be met:
 - The current invoices to be received account must have zero balance per item, and all orders (purchase order, purchase return, and return to vendor (RTV)) on the current invoices to be received account must be completed. If the above condition is not met, then a message "Not updated, Some account do not have zero balance and / or still attached to some non-completed orders" will be displayed. The update process will be terminated. You must rectify the error before running the batch update successfully.
- 8. Save and close Microsoft Excel.
- 9. Click Close to exit.

3.8 RECODING ITEMS

Recoding items in Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ is the changing of code numbers for your items. In a normal business process, this does not happen very often. Recoding of items is not encouraged because transactions involving your organization's items are mostly tied to the item code. Changing the code of the item will affect other transactions extensively including sales, purchases, and financial transactions.

There are also times when you need to merge similar items. This can be due to a mistake whereby two different employees created the same item. In order to maintain just one instance of the item, both these items have to be merged. You can merge items by recoding one of the items to have the same code as the other.

۹	001 Recode - Exact 🛛 🗙
Old	BEK0004
I New	BEK0004
	Image: Constraint of the second secon

To recode items:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Items \rightarrow Maintain.
- 2. Select the item that you want to recode.
- 3. Click Recode. A message "This process may take some time. Continue?" will be displayed.
- 4. Click Yes. The Recode screen will be displayed.
- 5. Type a new code for the item and click **Recode**. Typing a code of an existing item will merge the two items together. All outstanding quotations, sales and/or purchase orders must be processed first before a merge can occur. A message "Completed successfully: Recode" will be displayed.
- 6. Click OK to exit.

3.9 COPYING ITEMS

In the process of recording your organization's items into Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, there will be times when you encounter items that have similar properties. Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ allows you to copy an existing item's properties when creating an item. This significantly reduces the need to retype the same information, already contained in an existing item, into a new item.

8	Copy item	x
> New: Item code	MAC0004	
Description	Roode Pelikaan Coffee Factory(met topping)	=
> Search code	MACCOFFEETOP	=
Supp. item code	MAC0004	
Сору		
Attachments		
Extra description		
Suppliers	🗹 💿 Main 🔿 All	
Warehouse	🗹 💿 Main 🔿 All	
BOM		
	<u>O</u> K <u>C</u> and	:el

To copy item properties:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Items \rightarrow Maintain.
- 2. Select an item to be copied.
- 3. Click Copy. The Copy Item screen will be displayed.
- 4. At New: Item code, Description, and Search code, type an item code, description, and search code for the new item. These are mandatory and the new item code must be unique. The Supp. item code field is automatically filled in (this field is enabled only if the Suppliers check box under the Copy section is selected).
- 5. Under the **Copy** section, select the relevant check boxes to copy the selected information to the new item. The check boxes are enabled only if the item contains the relevant information. For example, the **Attachments** check box is enabled only if the item to be copied has an attachment.
- 6. Click OK to create the item. The Items screen will be displayed.
- 7. Make the necessary changes for the new item.
- 8. Click Save.
- 9. Click Close to exit.

3.10 CREATING AND MAINTAINING SHIPPING METHODS

Shipping methods are the methods or carriers that can be used to ship your orders. You can use the shipping methods that are supported by the following modules:

- **E-Shipment** This module allows you to ship your orders using your preferred carriers. With the generated tracking number of each shipment, you can manually check the status of your shipment with the corresponding carrier.
- E-Shipping Manifest Integration This module allows Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ to integrate with StarShip and vice versa. StarShip is a software that is also integrated with the software of various carriers whereby you can compare the real-time rates of various carriers, ship the yet to be fulfilled orders that you have created in Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, find the latest status of your shipment, and invoice the orders and shipment in Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+. This module is available only if you have the SE1343 E-Shipping Manifest Integration and SE1200 E-Order licenses, and if you have defined the currency used in StarShip at Shipping manifest currency code in the Shipment section of Order settings. For more information, see the Shipment section of 2.4 Order Settings.

You can define the default shipping methods to be used in a sales order at the following, whereby the setting at the debtor maintenance screen will precede the setting **at Order settings**:

- At Shipping via in the Entry section of Order settings. For more information, see the Shipment section of 2.4 Order Settings.
- At Shipping via in the Sales order Invoice section in the Financial tab of a debtor maintenance screen.

٩	4	09 Shipping	methods - Exact			- 🗆	×
409 <u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit <u>H</u> elp							
+ 💾 🗩 🗣 🗈 🕻) ^ V © Ø						
Shipping methods	Description						
> Shipping via		Use shippir	ng manifest 🗌				
> Description							
Tracking number							
Shipment							
Packages							
Item group	0	[م	Company Meeting Ro	oms			
Supplier		لم			1		
Cost price	0.000		USD		_		
> Unit		۵					
> Warehouse code		Č.			1		
Print on order					-		
						+	×
					Save	New	<u>C</u> lose

To create shipping methods:

- 1. Go to System \rightarrow Logistics \rightarrow Shipping methods.
- 2. Click New.
- 3. In the header section of the **Shipping methods** tab, define the following:
 - At **Shipping via**, type a maximum of eight characters to define a code for the shipping method. This information is mandatory.
 - At **Description**, type a description for the shipping method. This information is mandatory.
 - Select the Use shipping manifest check box to define that the sales orders linked to this shipping method will be shipped using StarShip with E-Shipping Manifest Integration. Clear the check box to ship the corresponding sales orders using E-Shipment. Once selected, Cost price is set to zero and hidden, Shipment is hidden, and Packages and Print on order are selected but disabled.
- 4. In the **Tracking number** section of the **Shipping methods** tab, define the following:
 - Select the **Shipment** and/or **Packages** check boxes to issue a tracking number for every shipment and for every package shipped using this shipping method, respectively.
 - Type or select an item group at Item group to ship items under this item group using this shipping method.
 - At **Supplier**, type or select a supplier that will use this shipping method. This information is mandatory.
 - Type the cost price of the shipping method in the currency defined at **Default currency** in the **Standard** section of **General settings**.
 - At **Unit**, type or select the unit of measurement to be used when shipping. This information is mandatory.
 - At **Warehouse code**, type or select the warehouse that will use this shipping method. This information is mandatory.
 - Select the **Print on order** check box to print the shipping method on the order documents.
- 5. Click **Save** to save the shipping method.
- 6. Click Close to exit.

4. INVENTORY MANAGEMENT

Inventory management involves managing the day-to-day inventory transactions, such as stock counting, the receiving of inventory, fulfillment of inventory, internal use requests, interbranch transfers, and inventory costing. The following are business processes described in the **Inventory Management** and **E-Warehouse Management** modules:

- Stock count
- Purchasing process
- Sales process
- Internal use (Internal requisition)
- Interbranch transfer
- Location transfer
- Inventory costing

4.1 STOCK COUNT

Stock count is the process of counting inventory on a periodic basis throughout the year so that you have accurate information on inventory. Stock count is used to check for discrepancies between the physical and recorded inventory levels, and this is done on a frequency based on the value of the items. Usually if the value of a stock is higher, the stock is counted more frequently. This is to ensure that the inventory is consistently accurate and to prevent discrepancies due to damage, loss, and theft.

A counting cycle is used in Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ to determine the frequency of stock count. The counting cycle (in days) for an item is defined per warehouse in the item maintenance (under the **Inventory** tab, double-click a warehouse in the **Warehouses** pane, and type a value at **Counting** cycle).

Counting cycles determine when an item will be counted again after the last count. For example, item A has a counting cycle of 90 days and the last count was on January 1, 2006. Thus, if you conduct a stock count on March 28, 2006, this function will check whether the item needs to be counted based on the counting cycle. It will not allow you to create a count because the next count for item A should be 90 days from January 1, 2006.

When you process a stock count, two entries are recorded on the reference dates in the stock account and the cost of goods sold account respectively. If there are discrepancies between the physical quantity and the data in the system, there will be an amount adjustment in the stock account and the cost of goods sold account. The following financial transactions are recorded in the financial ledgers for the respective scenarios:

- **Positive stock count** This occurs when the physical quantity is more than the system quantity. Debit the stock account and credit the cost of goods sold account.
- **Negative stock count** This occurs when the physical quantity is less than the system quantity. Credit the stock account and debit the cost of goods sold account.

E		00)1 Counts)
Range								
Warehouse	1 - Centraal r	magazijn 📃 🔻						
Location		à to	👌 🗹 All					
통활 Assortments								
Item group			Ca.	to			C	M 🛛 🗚
Item code			C.	to			Cà	R 🛛
Unit	Sales unit	C Purchase unit						_
Selection								
Item status	Active	Blocked 🗆 I	Discontinued	Future 🗌 Inactive				
Attributes								
Stock controlled								
Extra								
Reference date	17/11/2015							
Use: Counting cycle								
Planner		C.						
Sort by	Items		-					
Show quantity zero	For all location	ns	-					
ABC analysis				Print				
Use inventory class from ABC an	alysis 🗆			Print current stock		7		
Sort by 🕲 Quantity used	A 70 %	N		Print serial batch nur	mber [5		
C Sales quantity	B 20 96	2						
C Revenue	C 10 96	N						
Cost of goods sold								
C Purchase cost								
Margin								
				[Print	+ <u>N</u> ew	X Close

To create stock counts:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Warehouse management \rightarrow Counts.
- 2. Click New. The Counts screen will be displayed.
- 3. Under the **Range** section at **Warehouse**, select the warehouse where you want to conduct the stock count.
- 4. At Location, select a location of the warehouse. This is available if you have selected the Warehouse locations check box at System → General → Settings, under Inventory settings.
- 5. At **Item code**, type or select an item code or a range of item codes for which you want to create a stock count. To create a stock count for a group of items then you can type or select an item group or a range of item groups at **Item group**. Item groups are items with the same revenue, cost of goods sold and stock accounts.
- 6. Under the Extra section at Reference date, type or select the reference date when the stock count is created. By default, the current date is displayed. Select the Use: Counting cycle check box to include the items that are eligible for stock count only. Items are eligible for stock count if the period starting from the date the item was last counted until the current date has exceeded the counting cycle.
- 7. Under the **ABC analysis** section, select the **Sort by** option to sort the results of the stock count by items or warehouse locations. For additional sort options, you can define the ABC analysis to sort the items by the quantity used, sales quantity, revenue, cost of goods sold, purchase cost, and margin.
- 8. Select the **Use inventory class from ABC analysis** check box to enable the options for ABC analysis. For more information on ABC analysis, see *4.7 Inventory Costing*.

ntry number	15910001									
eference date	17/11/2015									
roject			C.							
escription				G/L account		👌 🗹 Use Ce	ost of goods	sold		
Item	Burnel allo	den to co		Difference		ee stock Sls. unit	Counter			_
1 BEK0001	Description	Status	Current 11		11 New Fr	11 Doos	Countee	d Loc.	G/L account 7000	_
2 BEK0002		Active	11	0	4	11 Doos 4 Doos	H	5	7000	
		Active	4	0		4 Doos 6 Doos	H	00 07	7000	
		Active		0	6	5 Doos	H	50 100	7000	
-		Active	5	0	5	5 Doos 0 -	H	00 07	7000	
			0	0	0		H	50		
6 BON0001		Active	43	0	43	43 kg		5	7000	
7 BON0002		Active	79	0	79	79 kg	H	00 07	7000	
8 BON0003		Active	15	0	15	15 kg	H		7000	
9 BON0004		Active	66	0	66	66 kg	H	50	7000	
BON0005		Active	80	0	80	80 kg	H		7000	
1 BON0006		Active	38	0	38	38 kg	H	5	7000	
2 BON0007		Active	44	0	44	44 kg	H	5	7000	
3 BON0008		Active	37	0	37	37 kg		5	7000	
4 BON0009		Active	68	0	68	68 kg	H	r,	7000	
15 BON0010		Active	811.05	0	811.05	811.05 kg		Ę	7000	
arehouse	1 - Centraal magazijn	Total qua	intity	0						
em										

9. Click New. The Counts screen will be displayed:

- 10. Select the **Use Cost of goods sold** check box and the financial entries will be recorded in the **Cost of goods sold** account as defined in the item maintenance (under the **Financial** tab). Alternatively, you can specify the G/L account manually if it is different from the one defined in item maintenance. Only if there are no discrepancies found during the stock count for the item, you can proceed to step 14.
- 11. If you have the **Warehouse locations** check box selected at System → General → Settings, under **Inventory settings**, in the **Fulfillment** section, click 🗟 under the **Loc**. column and you will see the **Counts** screen. Otherwise, proceed to step 13.

2			001 Cou	nts - Exact			-	□ ×
001								
$\odot +$	💼 🖪 😗							
Item		BEK0001	1					
	Location	Current	Difference	New	Free stock	Sls. unit	Counted	S/B
1	B01	11	0	11	11	Doos		
2							H	
3							H	
5							H	
6								
7								
8								-
Total q	luantity	0						
								OK

12. Define the difference in quantity counted in a particular warehouse in the **Difference** column or the new quantity in the **New** column. If this is a serial or batch item, you need to specify the serial or batch numbers of items you want to count by clicking in the **S/B** column. Click **OK** to exit.

- 13. Define the difference in quantity counted in a particular warehouse in the **Difference** column or the new quantity in the **New** column. If it is a negative stock count, type the difference in quantity (it must be a negative value) in the **Difference** column or the new quantity in the **New** column. Otherwise, if it is a positive stock count, type the additional quantity in the **Difference** column or the new quantity in the **New** column. The **Counted** column will automatically be selected. If you have selected the **Warehouse locations** check box and have defined the stock count quantity in step 11. the **Difference** and **New** columns will automatically display the quantity defined earlier.
- 14. If this is a serial or batch item, you need to specify the serial or batch numbers of items you want to count by clicking in the S/B column. If it is a negative stock count, you will see the Serial numbers For CAS:VG01 or Batch numbers For CAS:VG01 screen where CAS:VG01 is the item you want to count. Select the serial or batch numbers from a list of numbers available in the current stock, and then click Select to link the numbers to the stock count entry screen and exit automatically. Otherwise, if it is a positive stock count, you will see the Create: Serial number or Create: Batch number screen. Type the serial or batch number for the serial or batch item at Serial number or Batch number. If you are registering more than one serial item, click Advanced, type the number of serial numbers you want to create at Increment factor, then type the first serial number at From, and then press TAB. The last serial number in a series of running number will be displayed automatically at To. Click OK to save and exit and return to the Counts screen.
- 15. Under the **Counted** column, select the check box in the relevant lines to verify the count.
- 16. Click **Process** to generate the stock count. After processing is completed, the stock count transaction will be registered in the financial journals with an entry number.

In step 11, the order and inventory settings determine the stock count difference allowed for negative stock count. Stock count difference for positive stock count is not affected. If the **Check stock** check box is selected under **Order settings** and **Counts: Check free stock** is set to **Yes** under **Inventory settings**, the difference quantity entered must be less than or equal to physical stock per warehouse/warehouse location (in the **Current** column) and free stock per warehouse (in the **Free stock** column). If you enter a stock count difference that is more than the free stock in the warehouse, you will see a tooltip message "Must be less than or equal to : Free stock" and you will not be able to proceed to process the stock count.

4.2 PURCHASING PROCESS

The purchasing process is related to the inventory business process because companies need to replenish depleted stock and fulfill customer orders. Purchase orders are created and sent to suppliers to request for the required items by the purchasing representative/buyer.

Delivery of purchase orders by suppliers involves the receipt of items, processing of the attached documents, such as delivery notes and invoices, and storage of the received items in an assigned location.

An invoice is received either together with the items or separately. The invoice is then entered in the purchase journal to record the amount to be paid to the supplier for the items received. As an optional checking procedure, a reconciliation of the receipt to the invoice is done to ensure that the amount to be paid matches the amount and quantity of items received. After processing the invoice and paying the supplier, the purchase process is considered complete.

In the event that there are damaged goods or the quantity delivered is more than the purchase order quantity, the items will be removed from the warehouse and sent back to the supplier's warehouse. A return receipt is created to register the returned stock. Upon receiving the returned items, the supplier will send a credit invoice to adjust the amount that was charged in the first invoice.

During the transportation of goods from the supplier's warehouse to the customer's warehouse, additional cost, such as transportation cost, insurance cost, inspection cost, import duties, and other taxes, are incurred within the purchasing process. The additional cost is called landed cost and needs to be added to the value of the stock so that it can be included to the calculation of margin and profit.

Landed costs are not registered as a percentage or amount of the item during the purchase order or receipt entry. Therefore, the cost has to be booked directly to the purchase invoice by creating a separate landed cost invoice. The landed cost invoice is then allocated to the purchase receipt. Thus, during stock valuation, the landed cost will be considered as part of the purchase receipt and will be included when updating the cost price of outgoing items. For more details on stock valuation and the stock valuation methods, refer to the *4.7 Inventory Costing*.

The following topics are relevant to this section:

- Receiving purchased items
- Reconciliation of receipts to invoices
- Creating and allocating landed cost invoices

4.2.1 Receiving purchased items

When purchased items arrive at the warehouse, the items are first unloaded to a temporary waiting area before being processed and received. In the temporary waiting area, documents are checked against the items ordered to verify the physical item and quantity.

In Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, the receipt of purchased items is registered at Purchase \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Receipts. This function is available only if you have the **Purchase** module. Also, a purchase order must be printed before the items can be received because the purchase order must be sent to the supplier in order for the supplier to send the items.

After the purchase receipt is created, the purchase receipt is recorded in the financial journals. If a receipt is created before the invoice then the entries are as follows:

- Debit the stock account
- Credit the invoice to be received

Otherwise, if the receipt and the invoice are created on the same date, the following entries are recorded:

- Debit the stock account
- Credit the invoice to be received
- Debit the invoice to be received
- Credit the accounts payable account

2					001 Recei	pts - Ex	act						×
001													
© -	F 🖬 🖪 🗛	🔳 E 🖉 🤷	# 0										
Purc	nase order	50	027 - Reinigingsprod.		Buyer			Bas de Waal					
Supp	lier	60	122 - Bruinsma Hore	ca Grootha	Shipping vi	а							
Purc	hase order	date 22	/2/2011		Entry num	ber		15910002					
Rece	pt date	17	/11/2015		Your ref.								
	Item	Description	Item code supplier	Status 🖌	E Location	Actuals	Pur. unit	Serial/batch S	erial/bat	ch numbers Lo	ot number	·	-
1	REI0004	Reinigingspoede	r RE10004	Active 🖌	A01	0	Doos	None					_
2	ł												
4	1												
5]												-
Ware	house	1 - Ce	ntraal magazijn		Total quant	tity	0						
Item		Reinig	ingspoeder		Purchase u	nit (Doo:	s) = 12 x Sal	les unit (Pot)					
					<u>=</u>		3	0		\$		0	
				PL	urchase <u>o</u> rder	9	Group	Set to z	ero	Process		<u>C</u> anc	el

To receive purchase order items:

- 1. Go to Purchase \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Receipts.
- 2. Define the relevant criteria.
- 3. Click **Refresh** to see a list of processed purchase orders.
- 4. Click **Advanced** in the **Selection** section in order to define the transaction date in the **Extra** section. At **Transaction date**, type or select a date to receive the items. The transaction date is the date the receipt will be recorded in the financial journals.
- 5. Select the purchase order you want to receive and click **Receipts**. You will see the **Receipts** screen. All items that are requested by the purchase order are displayed with the quantity ordered and the respective items' planned fulfillment dates.
- 6. At **Your ref.**, type the customer's reference (up to 30 alphanumeric characters) to register the receipt in the financial journals. This is an internal reference which will be used for invoicing purposes.
- 7. In the **Actuals** column, type the quantity you are receiving. By default, the actual quantity displayed is the ordered quantity. In the case of partial receipt, you can type a quantity that is less than the ordered quantity. However, you are not allowed to receive more than the ordered quantity.
- 8. If the item is a serial or batch item, you need to type the serial or batch number in the Serial/batch number column. Type a new serial or batch number for each unit of the item received. To create serial or batch numbers in a series of numbers for multiple units of the item, press F2 and you will see the Create: Serial number screen. Click Advanced, and then type the number of serial or batch numbers you want to create in addition to the first one. In the From field, type the serial number for the first item, then press TAB and the last number in the running series will be displayed automatically in the To box. Click OK to exit.
- 9. Click **Process** to process the receipt and exit.

4.2.2 Reconciliation of receipts to invoices

After receiving purchased items, reconciliation is usually carried out before payment to ensure that the correct amount is paid for the right quantity. Reconciliation is done periodically at regular intervals, for example at month-end or every quarter, to match the registered receipts with the corresponding invoices.

In Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, both the receipt and the invoice have to be processed before reconciliation. This is a checking measure to ensure that the invoice has the correct prices and quantities for the purchased items. If the amount on the receipt does not match the invoiced amount, then the actual amount in the processed invoice for the items received needs to be adjusted. For more details on adjusting processed invoices, see 2.5 Correcting Processed Invoices in the Invoice user manual.

Reconciliation of receipts to invoices is possible only if the following conditions are fulfilled:

- The amount and the quantity in the receipt(s) match those in the invoice(s).
- The invoice and receipt lines selected must have the same item code.
- The receipt lines selected must have the same purchase order number.
- One invoice line can be reconciled to multiple receipt lines so long as both the invoice and receipt totals are equal.
- Multiple invoice lines can be reconciled to multiple receipt lines so long as the invoices have the same Our ref.
- The total amount for the selected invoice lines cannot be greater than that of the selected receipt lines.

a				001 Rec	oncile - Exact						x
001 Eile Edit Help											
© 0											
Group by Supplier	ltem										
I Date from		📰 I to			R All						
Precision	2										
Warehouse	All			-	✓ A <u>d</u> vanced						
Name		Creditor number	Creditor	Postcode	City		Invoices	Receipts	Invoiced	Received	
Aalbers Verpak B.V.		60125	60125	2612gh	Delft		2	2	11.25	11.25	5 🖻
DHL		60088	60088					1		0.00) —
Hakim Atilla		991009	991009	5624GJ	Eindhoven			1		0.00	2
Machinefabriek Meier		60097	60097	6166	Geleen			12		463.70	5
Roode Pelikaan		60120	60120	4207HB	Gorinchem		41	44	220,975.00	220,935.50	2
TNT		60087	60087					13		0.00	1
•)	Þ
								221,41	0.45 EUR	Received	
								220,98	6.25 EUR I	Invoiced	
					U <u>R</u> efresh	 Zoom	A <u>u</u> tom		[] E <u>x</u> port	X <u>C</u> lose	

To reconcile receipts to invoices:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Warehouse management \rightarrow Reconcile.
- 2. At **Group by**, select **Supplier** or **Item** to group the receipts and invoices according to the selected option.
- 3. Type or select a date or a range of dates of receipts and invoices that you want to reconcile in the **Date from** and **to** fields.
- 4. Click Advanced to define more criteria.
- 5. Click **Refresh**. A list of suppliers or items with the number of invoices, receipts, the invoiced amount, and the received amount will be displayed.
- 6. Select the supplier or item for reconciliation and click **Zoom** to view the transactions.
- 7. Select the receipts (and return receipts if any) and the matching invoices (and credit invoices if any), and then click **Reconcile**. Upon clicking **Reconcile**, both the receipts and invoices will be automatically removed from the **Reconcile** screen. Note that credit invoices are created manually and are thus, registered without a purchase order number. Therefore, it is advisable to use the same **Our ref.** as the original invoice to identify the original invoice during reconciliation. Click **Close** to exit.
- Repeat steps 6 and 7 until all the receipts and invoices are reconciled. Alternatively, you can click
 Automatically to let Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ automatically reconcile the receipts and return
 receipts with the corresponding invoices. However, for credit invoice reconciliation, you need to
 manually match it with the original invoice.
- 9. Click Close to exit.

4.2.3 Creating and allocating landed cost invoices

Landed cost is the total cost incurred when an item is transported from one location to another. Landed cost such as insurance, transportation, and import duty are incurred during the purchasing process to deliver the items from the warehouse to the customer's warehouse.

In Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, landed cost is added to the stock value of an item to get a more accurate cost price. This way, a more accurate cost price can be reflected in the stock value for the purpose of margin and profit calculations. Before allocating the landed cost in Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, you need to register the landed cost invoice in the financial ledgers (purchase journal) under a profit and loss account.

2				001 M	ake purchase en	try - Exact				- 🗆 🗙
001										
© -	- 💼 🖾 🛙	= = ^ ~ Ø								
Jm	Desc	ription (Irnl)								
6	Inkoop		Cr	eated by: Hanneke	Janssen 21/3/201	1				
Fu	lf.date [Date Entry no.	Creditor Y	our reference	Amount	Type	Descripti	on	P	Conditions
21/	3/2011 21/0	3/2011 11600014	60120 mac	hines hotels	238,452.20	Purchase invo 💌	machines hotels		_	
	G/L	G/L - Descrip	tion VAT	Amount	Descr	iption				^
1	2400		2	10,019.00	Machines Hotels					_
2	1511		2	1,903.61	Machines Hotels					-
Cred	itor	60120 / Roode P	elikaan	Person				Invoice amour	t:	238,452.20
Add	ess	Stephensonweg	18	Cost centr	e			Entered	1	238,452.20
		4207HB Gorinch	em / Netherland					VAT basis	÷.,	200,380.00
	account	518.06.45.379		Item cd.				Tax total	÷.,	38,072.20
	number	Unknown (Liable / 2400 / FUR	e to pay VAT)	Decident co.	d a			Difference		0.00
	/ G/L / Cur. / Status	Supplier / Active		Project co	de					
Type		a appendit / fictive								
	周		æ	1	1	t i	ø	+		×
Recu	rring entr	<u>G</u> /L Card	Creditor card	⊆reditor	New creditor	Match	Edi <u>t</u>	New		Close

To create invoices for landed cost:

- 1. Go to Finance \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Purchase.
- 2. Select the purchase journal, and then click **Zoom**.
- 3. Click **New** to create landed cost entries in the purchase journal. The **Make purchase entry** screen will be displayed.
- 4. In the Date column, type the date you receive the invoice for the landed cost. By default, the current date is displayed and an entry number is automatically generated by the system for the purchase journal entry. The entry number depends on the settings defined at Purchase journal at System → General → Settings, under Numbers settings.
- 5. Press TAB to define the information or to accept the default values. You can type or select the relevant options by pressing F2. Define the following information at the header:
 - Creditor Select the creditor that you are creating the invoice for.
 - Your reference Type the reference number provided in the invoice received from the supplier.
 - Amount Type the total amount invoiced.
 - Description You can add a description to identify the invoice.
- 6. Define the details of the landed cost in the entry lines. The relevant information is as follows:
 - **G/L, G/L Description** Type or select the general ledger account code and the corresponding description will be displayed automatically. The entry for the landed cost will be recorded in this account journal.
 - Amount The amount will automatically be displayed with the total quantity as entered in the invoice header. You can change the amount for that entry line to reflect the charges for the respective landed cost. If you do change this amount, the next line will automatically display the total of the invoice header amount minus the amount for that invoice entry line.
 - **Description** You can add a description to identify the entry line.
- 7. Click **Close** to exit and the financial entries for the landed cost invoice will be registered at the selected general ledger accounts.

Tip:

You can choose to add information by clicking E Columns at the toolbar and selecting the relevant check boxes.

a	C	01 Landed co	osts - To be a	llocate	d/Una	allocated - Exa	ct	- 🗆 🗙
001 <u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> di	t <u>H</u> elp)						
6 7								
Option								
Method	6	Allocation	O Unallocatio	n				
meenou								
Selection								
Supplier			Ľ.	to				All
Purchase or	der		<u> </u>	to				
Your ref.			<u> </u>	to				
Our ref.				to			F	All
Projects			لم	to			Ca F	All
GLaccount				to			24	All
Journal				to				All
Transaction				to			24	All
			H					
Landed costs								
	upplier		GL account G	L descri			Our ref.	Your ref.
10/3/2011		Telfort	4300					telefoonkosten
3/3/2011	60124	Berg Vastgoed						huurkosten
25/2/2011			6020			PrdO 10011	10000172	
4								
<			<u> </u>	_				>
			U		4	\checkmark	Θ_{i}	×
			<u>R</u> efresh	<u>O</u> u	ır ref.	<u>C</u> ontinue	<u>B</u> ack	Close

To allocate landed cost:

- 1. Go to Inventory → Warehouse management → Landed costs. This menu path is available only if you have the **Inventory Management** module and if **Standard cost price (Classic)** is not selected at **Valuation method** at System → General → Settings, under **Inventory settings**.
- 2. In the Landed costs To be allocated/Unallocated screen, Allocation is the default method. Define the relevant criteria.
- 3. Click **Refresh** to display a list of landed cost lines that you want to allocate. Only entries in profit and loss accounts in the purchase journal (invoices) and general journal (estimation of cost for month-end closing when no invoice is received yet) can be selected.
- 4. Select the landed cost line you want to allocate.
- 5. Click Continue.
- 6. In the Landed cost Receipts screen, define the relevant criteria.
- 7. Click **Refresh** to display a list of receipts.
- 8. Select the corresponding receipt line to be allocated to the invoice and click **Allocate**. Information of the landed cost line selected earlier is displayed above the receipt lines.

- In the Landed costs Allocation screen, select an allocation method at Method to allocate the cost to the receipt. Four methods are available and the following are the formulas for the respective methods:

 - Value (Value in default amount/total default amount) * Amount to be allocated
 - Weight ---- (Quantity * weight/total weight) * Amount to be allocated
 - Volume (Quantity * volume/total volume) * Amount to be allocated
- 10. Allocation using the quantity method uses the quantity in the allocated receipt. The value method uses the cost price of the item as defined in the item maintenance (Inventory → Items → Maintain) and is displayed in the **Value** column. You can also use the weight and volume method for non-countable items, such as items in liquid form and items that are purchased in bulk.
- 11. Click **Calculate** to calculate the stock value after allocation and refresh the values on the screen. You can use this function to view the calculated values in the **Costs** column whenever you change the calculation method.
- 12. Click Process and a message "Completed successfully" will be displayed. Click OK to exit.

4.3 SALES PROCESS

The sales order process is closely connected to the inventory process because both processes involve the movement of stock when items that were ordered by customers are delivered from the warehouse(s). Firstly, the warehouse manager needs to identify the sales orders that are required for fulfillment on a certain date. Then, he has to ensure that there is sufficient items and stock to meet the specific sales order items and quantity.

If the warehouse has available items and sufficient quantity to meet the items requested by the sales order, then picking lists can be printed for the warehouse personnel to retrieve the items requested in the sales orders from their specific warehouse locations. Once the items are collected and packed for shipment, the sales order is ready for fulfillment.

The following topics are relevant to this section:

- Generating reports on deliverables from stock
- Printing picking lists for sales orders
- Fulfilling sales orders
- Processing sales order shipment

4.3.1 Generating reports on deliverables from stock

Before items in sales orders can be delivered to customers, the warehouse will prepare the items for delivery. The preparation includes picking, packaging, and shipment of the items by the freight forwarder. Before items in a sales order can be fulfilled, the warehouse has to check whether the items are available in stock or if there is sufficient current available stock. In Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, you can generate a report on deliverables from stock in order to determine the sales orders that are ready for fulfillment.

To generate reports on deliverables from stock:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Reports \rightarrow Deliverable from stock.
- 2. At Warehouse, type or select the warehouse of the deliverable items.
- 3. Type or select a date at **Fulfillment date** to display the orders that are expected to be fulfilled by a specific date. By default, the current date is displayed.
- 4. Click **Display** and the **Deliverable from stock** screen will display the sales orders that can be fulfilled. For more information on the deliverable from stock report, see *5.3 Deliverable from Stock*.

4.3.2 Printing picking lists for sales orders

A picking list is a list of items to be fulfilled for a sales order sorted in the order of the items' warehouse location(s). It is useful for warehouse employees so that they can pick the items at the right quantity at the respective warehouse location(s) easily and quickly.

After determining the sales orders that can be fulfilled from the deliverables from the stock report, the warehouse employees can start retrieving the items for the respective sales orders. A picking list is then printed in order to retrieve the items in an efficient manner. You can choose to print the picking list separately before the fulfillment process or during the fulfillment process. The items printed on the picking list are based on the sales orders.

8	001 - Exact	×
Type Pickir	ng list Collective picking list C Dispatch list	_
Options Prin Expl	t dispatch list as well ode	_
Layouts		_
l Layout	XXEXACT1 Ca Pick list	
Bar code t	уре	_
Туре	EAN-8	-
	Print Cl	¢ ose

To print picking lists for sales orders:

- 1. Go to Orders \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Picking list.
- 2. Define the relevant criteria.
- 3. Click **Search**. Sales orders that match the defined criteria are then displayed.
- 4. Select the relevant sales order.
- 5. Click Print.
- 6. Under the **Type** section, **Picking list** is selected by default.
- 7. To include the item parts in the picking list, select the **Explode** check box under the **Options** section.
- 8. At Layout, type or select the layout for the picking list.
- 9. Click **Print**.

4.3.3 Fulfilling sales orders

When the items are picked and ready to be delivered, you can then proceed to fulfill the sales orders. Fulfillment of sales orders indicate that the items requested by customers have been satisfied and the items are ready for shipment and actual delivery. Fulfillment can be done only when sales orders are authorized and processed, and there is sufficient free stock for the ordered items.

In Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, multiple sales orders can be fulfilled at the same time if the **Selection: Multiple** check box is selected at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, under **Order settings**, in the **Fulfillment** section. This feature is useful if there is a huge number of sales orders to fulfill on a particular date. Partial deliveries are also allowed depending on the conditions set in the sales order.

Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ enables you to print packing lists and delivery notes during fulfillment. Packing lists are used to identify the items in the sealed packages, and are used by customers to identify the orders when receiving the items. Delivery notes list all the items and quantity delivered. Customers use delivery notes to check whether all the items listed in the delivery notes are delivered as requested in the sales orders, and also to confirm that the correct items and quantity are delivered.

Sales orde Debtor Created Description 1 SER 2 SER 3 SER 4 SER	em R0001 R0002	Bart kop koffie 12 st.	Status Active	rc Rep Ent	ur reference presentativ try number	ve Sar r 159	2	Unit	_	Chinees restaura De heer Ling De lange meerwe S260 Vught Netherlands	2g 8	Address	Sanne Kleir
Sales orde Debtor Created Description 1 SER 2 SER 3 SER 4 SER	em R0001 R0002	20052 - Dropship levering 60101 - Chinees restaurar 14/3/2011 Dropship levering Description Bart kop espresso 12 st. Bart kop koffle 12 st.	Status Active	rc Rep Ent	oresentativ try number	ve Sar r 159	nne Klein - van El 210002 Actuals 2	Unit	_	De heer Ling De lange meerwe 5260 Vught Netherlands	2g 8	Address	Sanne Kleir
Debtor Created Description 1 SER 2 SER 3 SER 4 SER	on em R0001 R0002	60101 - Chinees restaurar 14/3/2011 Dropship levering Description Bart kop espresso 12 st. Bart kop koffle 12 st.	Status Active	rc Rep Ent	oresentativ try number	ve Sar r 159	nne Klein - van El 210002 Actuals 2	Unit	_	De heer Ling De lange meerwe 5260 Vught Netherlands	2g 8	Address	Sanne Kleir
Created Description 1 SER 2 SER 3 SER 4 SER	em R0001 R0002	14/3/2011 Dropship levering Description Bart kop espresso 12 st. Bart kop koffie 12 st.	Status Active Active	Ent	ry number	159	Actuals	Unit	_	De lange meerwe 5260 Vught Netherlands			Sanne Kleir
1 SER 2 SER 3 SER 4 SER	em R0001 R0002	Description Bart kop espresso 12 st. Bart kop koffie 12 st.	Active Active	1	Location	Ordered 2	2	Doos	_	Netherlands	nount Serial/bat		Sanne Klei
1 SER 2 SER 3 SER 4 SER	R0001	Bart kop espresso 12 st. Bart kop koffie 12 st.	Active Active	1	Location	Ordered 2	2	Doos	_	sales order Zero a	mount Serial/bat	tch Lot numbe	Sanne Klei
2 SER 3 SER 4 SER	R0002	Bart kop koffie 12 st.	Active			2	-		✓				
3 SER 4 SER				\checkmark									
4 SER	R0003	Part kee canourcine 12 ct				1	1	Doos	✓				Sanne Kle
-		Bart Kop cappuccino 12 st.	Active	1		3	3	Doos	✓				Sanne Kle
	R0004	Bart cacaomok 12 st.	Active	1		1	1	Doos	✓				Sanne Kle
5 SER	R0005	Bart schotel cacaomok 12 st.	Active	\checkmark		1	1	Doos	✓				Sanne Kle
6 SER	R0006	Bart schotel espresso 12 st.	Active	\checkmark		2	2	Doos	✓				Sanne Kle
7 SER	R0007	Bart schotel koffie/cappuccin	Active	1		3	3	Doos	✓				Sanne Kle
Varehouse DROP - Dropship magazijn Total quantity 13													
tem		and a signifi in	Pordu		10	and a possible	, 15						0
										Sales order	Set to zero	t Fulfilment	Cancel

To fulfill a sales order:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Fulfillment.
- 2. Select **Sales order** in the **Selection** section. You can choose to display a list of sales orders that are planned for fulfillment on a specific date by typing or selecting the date at **Fulfillment date**.
- Click Advanced to define the transaction date for the fulfillment at Transaction date. The transaction date is the date of the actual delivery and is registered in the financial ledgers while the fulfillment date is the planned fulfillment date for the sales order.
- 4. Click Refresh.
- 5. Select the sales order you want to fulfill.
- 6. Click Fulfillment. The Fulfillment screen will be displayed.
- 7. In the Location column, type or select the warehouse location (by pressing F2).
- 8. Type the quantity to be fulfilled in the Actuals column. By default, the actual quantity displayed is the ordered quantity. In the case of partial receipt, you can type a quantity that is less than the ordered quantity. Partial deliveries are allowed if you have selected the Partial delivery allowed check box in the conditions set in the sales order (click Conditions in the sales order entry screen). However, you are not allowed to receive more than the ordered quantity.
- Type or select the serial or batch number in the Serial/batch column. To select a serial number, press F2, select the serial or batch number, and then click Select. This step is applicable only to serial or batch items.
- 10. Type or select the person in charge of the item in the **Person** column.
- 11. Click Fulfillment and you will see the Print: Sales orders screen. Select Final under the Print section.

- Select None under the Output section if you do not wish to print a copy of the delivery note. Otherwise, select Printer to print a delivery note or select E-mail to send the delivery note by e-mail.
- 13. You can have the option to generate the sales order invoice at this point. Select the Generate invoices check box in the Entry data section to generate an invoice. To print a copy of the invoice, select the Print invoices check box. The printed invoice is sent to the customer, along with the delivered items. To generate invoice only for the items that are fulfilled, select the Lines check box.
- 14. Select the **Packing list** check box to print the packing list for the sales order.
- 15. Click **Start** to process the fulfillment of the sales order, and/or print or send the delivery note. To view the delivery note before printing or sending, click **Preview**.
- 16. After clicking Start, the Print invoices screen will be displayed if you have selected the Print invoices check box under the Entry data section. Under the Process section, select the Final option and select a layout for the invoice document. For the final invoice, you have the option of selecting Printer to print the invoice or E-mail to send the invoice by e-mail. You can also change the due date for the invoice in the Print invoices screen, and it will update the invoice due date set in the sales order conditions (click Conditions in the sales order entry screen).
- 17. Click Process to process and print the invoice.

To fulfill multiple sales orders:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Fulfillment.
- 2. Define the relevant criteria.
- 3. Click **Refresh**. Take note that fulfillment of multiple of sales orders is allowed only if you have selected the **Selection: Multiple** check box at System → General → Settings, under **Order settings**, at the **Fulfillment** section.
- 4. Hold down the CTRL key and select the sales orders you want to fulfill and click Process.
- In the Print: Sales orders screen, select Final in the Print section. In the Output section, select Printer to print the delivery notes, E-mail to send the notes to the customer by e-mail, or None if no output is required.
- Select the Generate invoices check box in the Entry data section to generate invoices for the sales orders. Select the Print invoices check box to print the invoices. To generate invoices only for the items that are fulfilled, select the Lines check box.
- 7. Select the **Packing list** check box to print the packing lists for the sales orders.
- 8. Click **Start** to process the fulfillment of the sales orders, and/or print or send the delivery notes. To view the delivery notes before printing or sending, click **Preview**.
- 9. After clicking **Start**, the **Print invoices** screen will be displayed if you have selected the **Print invoices** check box under the **Entry data** section.
- 10. In the Process section, select the Final option and select a layout for the invoice document.
- 11. For the final invoice, select **Printer** to print the invoice or **E-mail** to send a copy by e-mail. You can also change the due date for the invoices in the **Print invoices** screen, which will be updated to the invoice due date defined in the sales order conditions (click **Conditions** in the sales order entry screen).
- 12. Click **Process** to process and print the invoices.

In step 8 of *To fulfill a sales order*, the order and inventory settings determine the quantity you are allowed to enter in the **Actuals** column. If the **Check stock** check box is selected in the **Order settings** and the **Warehouse location** check box is selected in the **Inventory settings**, the system will check the actual quantity based on the physical stock per warehouse location and the free stock per warehouse.

If the actual quantity entered is more than the physical stock in the warehouse location, you will see a tooltip message at the entry box "Must be less than or equal to: Stock". If the actual quantity entered is more than the free stock in the warehouse, you will see a tool tip message at the entry box "Must be less than or equal to: Free stock".

If the **Check stock** check box is selected but the **Warehouse location** check box is not selected, the system will validate the actual quantity based on free stock per warehouse and you will see a tool tip message if the actual quantity is more than the free stock per warehouse.

If an interbranch transfer is created for a sales order, the interbranch transfer stock must be received before fulfilling the sales order. This feature prevents the unwanted situation where free stock is more

than the physical stock in the warehouse. For more information on interbranch transfer, see *4.5 Interbranch Transfers*. Otherwise, you will see a message "Not received: Linked interbranch transfer" and you will not be able to proceed to fulfill the sales order.

For multiple sales orders, only the sales orders which are linked to interbranch transfer requests that are not received will not be processed. These sales orders will be identified and listed in a sales order error report.

In many practical situations, the actual delivery of goods can be different from the items listed in the sales order due to reasons, such as replacing items that are out of stock and items that are measured in bulk (weight or volume). Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ allows you to fulfill extra items based on existing sales order line or an additional new line in the sales order fulfillment screen. When you enter extra items in a new line in the fulfillment screen, the price of the items is calculated based on the price in the item maintenance. The additional line will be reflected in the sales order and invoice.

4.3.4 Processing sales order shipment

After sales orders are fulfilled, you can then process the shipment for deliveries to be made to customers. Processing of shipment is an optional step in the sales process and is used to track the shipment details, such as shipment dates, delivery cycle times, and actual customer receipt dates. These shipment details provide a benchmark to further improve existing logistics processes.

When processing shipment in Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, you can use a tracking number to track your deliveries. The tracking number is usually provided by the freight forwarder that is in charge of transporting the items to customers. The shipping method used is defined during the creation of sales orders. You can still change the shipping method after fulfillment but it must be done before processing the sales order shipment.

You can print a receipt label for the shipment. Receipts labels are attached to the shipment so that the customer can identify the order for this receipt.

our sinpitient - Exact								-		×		
001												
1 C	. E Ø	0										
Sales order 20031 - P20031		Reference		031								
Debto	or	6009	93 - Cafe Hout		Representative Erik van M			ierlo				
Create	ed	Erik	van Mierlo		Shipping type	Shipping type						
Fulfilr	Fulfilment date 23/2/2011		Our ref.	Our ref.								
	Item Description		Status	Packages			Project			-		
1	OPL		Op locatie		Active	1	stuk		20031			-
2												-
4												-
5												
6												-
Item Op locatie Warehouse		se 1 - Cer	e 1 - Centraal magazijn				0.0	0				
								Sales order	C Process		Cano	cel
								- zones order	7.00033		2011	~

To process sales order shipments:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Shipping.
- 2. Define the relevant criteria.
- 3. Click **Refresh**.
- 4. Select the sales order that you want to ship.
- 5. Click Shipping. The Shipment screen will be displayed.
- The shipment method you have selected during the creation of sales order is displayed by default in the **Item** column. You can change the shipping method by pressing F2 and selecting the shipment method you want (defined at System → Logistics → Shipping methods).
- 7. Type the number of packages to be delivered in the Packages column.
- Type the tracking number of the shipment in the Tracking number column. This column is enabled only if the Shipment check box is selected in the shipping method maintenance (go to System → Logistics → Shipping methods and open the shipping method displayed in the Item column).

- Click **Process**. The **Receipts label** screen will be displayed.
 Click **Start** to print the receipt label or **Cancel** to process the shipment without printing the receipt label.

4.4 INTERNAL USE

Internal use requests are orders made to fulfill needs within an organization, for example when an employee needs new equipment or service during the course of work or when there is a need to replenish stationery and tools at the workplace.

This function is available in Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ only if you have the **E-Internal Usage** license. After creating the internal use request, it has to be authorized by the employee's manager before the internal request can be fulfilled. In Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, the authorization step is mandatory only if you have the selected the **Internal use** check box at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, under the **Inventory settings**, in the **Authorise** section.

If items are not available in stock or if there is insufficient quantity, you can create purchase orders to replenish the items.

In Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, you can create a linked purchase order to meet the requirements of a particular internal use request. When the purchased item is received, you can then fulfill the internal use request. The sequence of the process flow is displayed as follows:



The following topics are relevant to this section:

- Creating and modifying internal use requests
- Authorizing internal use requests
- Creating linked purchase orders
- Fulfilling internal use requests
- Deleting internal use requests

4.4.1 Creating and modifying internal use requests

In Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, internal use requests can be created by the persons requesting the items or by an administrator.

User rights: You can only create, modify, or delete internal requests if you have the proper rights at System \rightarrow HR & Security \rightarrow Security roles. To enable the menu path for the user, you need to go to Menu \rightarrow Inventory \rightarrow Security roles to create a role that has the right to authorize or add the user to an existing role.

8			001 Internal	use - Exact					-	×
ltem, Qty., Unit, Price Date Reason Note	MACHINES		x	0.) - [0.00 EL	JR Sales Buy Stock Serial Assets Make	× × ×		×
Person	Antoine de Groot	Cà.						~ 1		
Cost centre, Cost unit Project, SO	VERKOOP				_			CA.		
Ordered Authorised Image: state	Fulfilled		rnal use sted: Aaron de V	VII: 1/3/2011 1	2:00 AM		c	Our ref.: 100001	78	
Advanced Qur ref.	El Éulfilled Security [♣ 1 Budget Person	Project	Item	 Transfer	© Pro <u>d</u> uce) Purc <u>h</u> ase	O Authorise	+ <u>N</u> ew	X Close

To create internal use requests:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Internal use.
- 2. Click New. You will see the Internal use screen.
- 3. At **Item**, **Qty.**, **Unit**, **Price**, type or select the item and define the quantity, and then press TAB. The unit price and the total cost price (unit price multiplied by the quantity) will be automatically displayed. The price displayed is the cost price of the item and is defined in the item maintenance.
- 4. At Date, type or select the expected fulfillment date. The fulfillment date is the planned date for the fulfillment of the internal request item or service. Click Avail. stock to check whether there is sufficient available quantity to fulfill the internal use request. Otherwise, you will have to generate a purchase order to fulfill the request. For details on how to generate a purchase order, see 4.4.3 Creating linked purchase orders.
- 5. Type additional details on the request at **Note**. If you press TAB, the creator's timestamp will be automatically displayed. This timestamp is used for tracking when the internal use request is created and when remarks are attached to the request.
- 6. Type or select the person who is requesting this item or service and the corresponding cost center for that person will be automatically displayed. If you prefer to record the expense to another cost center, you can type or select a cost center at **Cost center**. The creditor information is automatically displayed and it cannot be modified. The creditor is the requester by default, so that the company can reimburse a claim to the creditor account of the person during payroll processing.
- 7. You can tell whether an item is available at **Avail. stock**. ★ indicates insufficient stock and the main supplier's delivery time will be displayed next to MRP. ✓ indicates that there is sufficient stock. Click **MRP** to view the materials requirement planning for the item requested. The materials requirement planning is a schedule to determine the items required, the quantity required and the date the item needs to be delivered.
- 8. Click Save to exit.

You can specify the warehouse and warehouse location you want to use to fulfill the request. It is useful to specify a warehouse situated at an address that is convenient for the requester to pick up the requested item. To specify the warehouse and warehouse location, click **Advanced** to define the information at **Warehouse** and **Location**. If the item requested is a serial or batch item, you can assign the serial or batch number from current available stock at **Serial number** or **Batch number**.

You can modify an internal use request as long as it is not in the authorized stage yet. If the request is already authorized, you have to remove the authorization before you can modify it. The purpose of removing the authorization is so that changes made to the internal use request has to be authorized again before proceeding to do a fulfillment.

To modify internal use requests:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Internal use.
- 2. Define the relevant criteria.
- 3. Click Search. The internal use requests that match the defined criteria are then displayed.
- 4. Select the internal use request you want to modify.
- 5. Click **Open**. You will see the **Internal use** screen with the request details.
- 6. Make the necessary changes.
- 7. Click **Save** to save your changes and exit.

4.4.2 Authorizing internal use requests

After an internal use request is created, the internal use request can be authorized. Authorization is an important step in the internal use process flow because there is a financial cost as a result of the item requested for internal use and the cost has to be approved by the management personnel. Authorization is usually done by the management personnel responsible for the department's budget and business planning.

In Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, authorization is an optional process. It is made mandatory only if you have selected the **Internal use** check box at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, under **Inventory settings** at the **Authorize** section. However, you can still remove the authorization if there is a need to modify or delete an authorized internal use request.

User rights: You can only create, modify, or delete internal requests if you have the proper rights at System \rightarrow HR & Security \rightarrow Security roles. To enable the menu path for the user, you need to go to Menu \rightarrow Inventory \rightarrow Security roles to create a role that has the right to authorize or add the user to an existing role. Note that the requester is not allowed to authorize the internal use request.

To authorize internal use requests or to remove the authorization from internal use requests:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Authorize.
- 2. Select Internal use in the Selection section.
- 3. Define the relevant criteria.
- 4. Click **Refresh**. Internal use requests that match the defined criteria are then displayed.
- 5. Select the internal use request you want to authorize.
- 6. Click **Open**.
- 7. Click the Authorized process step to authorize the internal use request.

Tip:

You can also authorize the internal use request by selecting the relevant request and clicking **Auth.**. Alternatively, you can authorize the internal use request at Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Internal use by opening an existing request and clicking the **Authorized** process step.

4.4.3 Creating linked purchase orders

A linked purchase order is a purchase order that is generated to meet the needs of an internal use request. The reason for this could be because there is insufficient or unavailable stock for the item or service requested. By linking the purchase order to the internal use request, you can allocate the quantity to the internal use request for the materials requirements planning.

In Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, you need to authorize the internal use request before you can create a linked purchase order. When you create a purchase order from the internal use request, the system will automatically prompt you with an advised quantity to be purchased. The quantity advised will depend on the order policy code, stock PO level, and the supplier PO size in the item maintenance (under the **Purchase/Sales** tab and the **Inventory** tab respectively).

The order policy code determines the method by which the order requirements and stock is replenished. The order policy code available in Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ are lot-for-lot (order controlled), fixed (stock controlled), period order (stock controlled), and reorder point (stock controlled). The stock PO level controls the minimum level of stock allowed at any point of time for an item. The supplier PO size determines the minimum quantity or a batch quantity that can be ordered from a supplier.

900 Generate purchase orders - Exact									
900 Eile Edit Help									
© 🖬 🛛									
Sort Suppliers 🔍 WarehouseMain wareh	house Thow	All TI Include:	Stock controlled						
		Advice:	Quantity on order						
		ee stock Shortage Unit Factor PO size Advice							
3 Intel Electronics CHP:P4 Intel® Penti	01 🗸 1.000 0.000	12.000 0.000 Unit 000000 1.000 1.000	Unit 13 96 MYR						
1									
			Excel Purchase Cancel						

To create linked purchase orders:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Internal use.
- 2. Define the relevant criteria.
- 3. Click Search. Internal requests that match the defined criteria are then displayed.
- 4. Select the internal use request for which you want to generate a purchase order.
- 5. Click Open.
- 6. Click Purchase. The Generate purchase orders screen will be displayed.
- 7. The quantity you need to fulfill this request is automatically displayed in the **Advice** column. If the item you requested is a stock controlled item, then select the **Include: Stock controlled** check box to see the advised quantity.
- 8. Click **Purchase** and the **Purchase order** screen will be displayed with the purchase order details filled out already. Ensure that the appropriate purchase order creation date and the fulfillment date are filled out so that the internal request can be fulfilled by the fulfillment date.
- 9. Click Close to exit.

When you reopen the internal use request, you will be able to see the purchase order number at **Creditor**, **PO** (on the right). You can then track whether the purchase order items have been received from the suppliers by clicking **Purchase**.

4.4.4 Fulfilling internal use requests

If there is sufficient stock for the items requested or if the purchased items have already been received from the supplier, you can then fulfill the internal use requests. During fulfillment, you can choose to print an issue slip. The issue slip will be delivered to the requester of the item. Using the issue slip, the requester can verify item and quantity received.

11	900	Internal use - Exact		- • ×
900 <u>File Edit View b</u>	ielp			
© + î A E /	88 @			
Person Cost centre	Jojo Goh	G/L.	Debit Credit	
Warehouse	001CC001 - Default cost center 01 - Shah Alam (Main)	7000 Cost of Sales 3000 Stock	320.00 320.00	
Fulfilment date Entry number	17/8/2005 15300001			
Description	New Inventory			
Date Item		tion # Authorised Unit Actuals Serial/bat	ch Lot number	
	.66G Intel® Pentium® 4 Processor 2.66GHz Active In	1 Unit 1		
2				
-				8
			Igem Picking list Fulfilm	

To fulfill internal use requests:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Fulfillment.
- 2. Select the Internal use option under the Selection section. Click Advanced to define more criteria.
- 3. Click **Refresh** to display all authorized internal use requests that have not been fulfilled.
- 4. Select the internal use request you want to fulfill.
- 5. Click Fulfillment. The Internal use screen will be displayed. The actual fulfillment date defined in step 2 is automatically displayed under the Date column. If you have selected the Warehouse locations check box at System → General → Settings, under Inventory settings, in the Fulfillment section, you will see a Location column. In the Location column, type or select (by pressing F2) the warehouse location of the items that you want to use to fulfill the internal use request. By default, the quantity you need to fulfill the internal use request is displayed in the Actuals column. If this is a partial fulfillment, type the partial quantity. The actual quantity should always be the same or less than the authorized quantity in the # Authorized column. If the item is a serial or batch item, you must specify the serial or batch number in the Serial/batch column.
- 6. To print a picking list for the item(s) requested, click **Picking list**. The picking list will contain information on the warehouse location of the items. For details on picking list, see *4.3 Sales Process*.
- 7. Click Fulfillment to process the fulfillment of the internal use request.
- 8. In the **Print** screen, select a layout.
- 9. Click **Start** to print the issue slip, **Skip** to cancel the printing of issue slip, or **Close** to cancel the fulfillment.

In step 5 of *To fulfill internal use requests*, the order and inventory settings determine the quantity you are allowed to define in the **Actuals** column. If the **Check stock** check box is selected in the **Order settings** and the **Warehouse location** check box is selected in the **Inventory settings**, the system will check the actual quantity based on the physical stock per warehouse location and the free stock per warehouse. If the actual quantity entered is more than the authorized quantity (in the **# Authorized** column), you will see the tool tip message "Must be less than or equal to: **#** Authorized".

If the actual quantity entered is more than the physical stock in the warehouse location (in the **Stock** column), you will see a tool tip message "Must be less than or equal to: Stock". If the actual quantity entered is more than the free stock in the warehouse (in the **Free stock** column), you will see a tool tip message "Must be less than or equal to: Free stock".

If the **Check stock** check box is selected but the **Warehouse location** check box is not selected, the system will validate the actual quantity based on free stock per warehouse and you will see a tool tip message if the actual quantity is more than the authorized quantity or the free stock per warehouse.

If an interbranch transfer is created for an internal use request, the interbranch transfer stock must be received before fulfilling the internal use request. This feature prevents the unwanted situation where free stock is more than the physical stock in the warehouse. For more information on interbranch transfers, see *4.5 Interbranch Transfers*. Otherwise, you will see a message "Not received: Linked interbranch transfer" and you will not be able to proceed to fulfill the internal use request.

4.4.5 Deleting internal use requests

It is possible to delete internal use requests that have been created provided the requests are not authorized. If the requests are already authorized, you have to remove the authorization first before you can delete the internal use request. You can remove the authorization at Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Authorize by selecting the relevant internal use request and clicking **Authorize**.

To delete internal use requests:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Internal use.
- 2. Define the relevant criteria.
- 3. Click **Search**. Internal requests that match the defined criteria are then displayed.
- 4. Select the internal use request that you want to delete.
- 5. Click **Delete**. A message "Delete the data selected?" is displayed.
- 6. Click **Yes** to delete.

4.5 INTERBRANCH TRANSFERS

Warehouses at different locations can be managed differently for the same organization. This could be due to factors, such as different management personnel and demand from customers and logistics business processes. Therefore, there are times when an item is stocked in one warehouse and not available in another because it has been discontinued or there is a strong demand for the item.

When certain items or quantity is needed to fulfill a sales order or an internal use request but is available at another warehouse, an interbranch transfer is done to deliver the items from the issuing warehouse (where the item is available) to the receiving warehouse (where the item is requested).

In Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, you can create an interbranch transfer to record the movement of stock from the issuing warehouse to the receiving warehouse. The interbranch transfer process flow starts from the **Ordered** step.

If you have made authorization mandatory by selecting the **Interbranch transfers** check box (at the **Authorise** section at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, under **Inventory settings**), you need to authorize the interbranch transfer before you can fulfill the interbranch transfer. After that, you need to fulfill the interbranch transfer to record the items when the items are fulfilled by the issuing warehouse and received in the receiving warehouse. This is done in the **Fulfilled** step.

You can use an intermediate warehouse to record the movement of stock in transit between the issuing warehouse and the receiving warehouse. If you select the **Use intermediate warehouse** check box under **Inventory settings**, the **Received** step is required. This function allows you to separate the steps for fulfillment at the issuing warehouse and receiving at the receiving warehouse.

The sequence of the process flow is displayed as follows:



Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ also gives you the option of using receipt labels for interbranch transfer receipts. Receipt labels enable the receiving warehouse to identify the items and quantity received in the received package. From the receipt label, you can easily find out the items and the date the items were received.

When the interbranch transfer is received by the warehouse, a receipt label is printed by the warehouse personnel and attached to the received packaged. Receipt labels are printed when items are received. For details on the settings for transit warehouse and receipt labels for interbranch transfer, see 2.1 *Inventory Settings*.

The following topics are relevant to this section:

- Creating interbranch transfers
- Authorizing interbranch transfers
- Fulfilling interbranch transfers
- Processing interbranch transfer receipts

2		123 Wareho	use transf	ers - Exact					×
123 Eile View Help									
© 🛍 🖻 🖉 🏍 🖗									
Our ref.	21722								
Interbranch transfer number	20400279			Refe	erence date	02/12/2015			
Issuing warehouse	1 - Default warehouse	-		Fulf	ilment date	02/12/2015	100 A		
Receiving warehouse	SER1 - 03 - FP - ZL Servicebus	-		Unit	t	Sales unit	O Purchase unit		
Project		Cà,							
Description									
Item	Description	Status	Stock	Free stock	Move S	ils. unit	Serial/batch S/B		-
1									_
2									
3 4 5									
5									-
Warehouse 1-0	Default warehouse								
Total quantity 0									
Ordered Authorised Fulfi	illed Received								
🛛 💷 🖉 🔚									
2/12/15 🗹 🗙	×								
								8	0
								Sa <u>v</u> e	Cancel

4.5.1 Creating interbranch transfers

To create interbranch transfers:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Warehouse management \rightarrow Interbranch transfers.
- In the Extra section at Unit, select the unit to be used for the transfer. The Sales unit and Purchase unit for the item is defined under the Basics tab and Purchase/Sales tab respectively, in the item maintenance. The unit selected for the interbranch transfer will be used to display the transaction quantity during the creation of interbranch transfer.
- 3. Click New.
- 4. In the **Warehouse transfers** screen, type or select the issuing warehouse and the receiving warehouse. The issuing warehouse must be different from the receiving warehouse.
- 5. At **Reference date**, type or select a date the interbranch transfer is created.
- Type or select a date the interbranch transfer is expected to be fulfilled at Fulfilment date and press TAB. By default, the current date is displayed. Fulfilment date is available only if you have selected the Use intermediate warehouse check box at System → General → Settings, under Inventory settings.
- At the Item column, type or select (by pressing F2) an item. If you select by pressing F2, you will see a list of items with available current free stock. Select the item and click Select. By default, the Stock column displays the quantity in stock.
- 8. If you have selected the Warehouse locations check box at System → General → Settings, under Inventory settings, click is in the Loc. column to select the destination warehouse location you are transferring the items to. The Warehouse transfers screen will be displayed. Otherwise, proceed to step 9. At the Warehouse transfers screen, type or select a location in the Destination column to select a location of the receiving warehouse. Then, type the interbranch transfer quantity in the Move column to transfer to the respective warehouse location in the receiving warehouse. If this is a serial or batch item, you need to specify the serial or batch numbers of items you want to transfer by clicking in the S/B column. Click OK to save and return to the Warehouse transfers screen.
- 9. Type the interbranch transfer quantity in the **Move** column. If you have selected the **Warehouse locations** check box and have defined the transfer quantity in step 8, the **Move** column will automatically display the quantity defined earlier.
- 10. If this is a serial or batch item, you need to specify the serial or batch numbers of items you want to transfer by clicking in the S/B column. You will see the Serial numbers For CAS:VG01 or Batch numbers For CAS:VG01 screen where CAS:VG01 is the item you want to transfer. Select the serial or batch numbers from a list of numbers available in the current stock, and then click Select to link the numbers to the interbranch transfer and exit automatically.

- 11. Click Save.
- 12. Click Authorised. After the interbranch transfer is authorized, it is ready for fulfillment.

4.5.2 Authorizing interbranch transfers

Interbranch transfers involve the movement of stock from one warehouse to another, and the stock value of both the issuing and receiving warehouses will change after the transfer. Therefore, it is a good practice to get the authorization of management level personnel to authorize the interbranch transfer.

In Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, authorization is mandatory only if you have selected the **Interbranch transfer** check box at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, under **Inventory settings** in the **Authorise** section. Otherwise, you can proceed to fulfill the interbranch transfer without authorization.

User rights: You can only authorize interbranch transfers if you have the proper rights at System \rightarrow HR & Security \rightarrow User rights. To enable the menu path for the user, you need to go to Menu \rightarrow Inventory \rightarrow Security roles to create a role that has the right to authorize or add the user to an existing role.

To authorize interbranch transfers:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Authorise.
- 2. Select Interbranch transfer in the Selection section.
- 3. Define other relevant criteria.
- 4. Click Refresh. Interbranch transfers that match the defined criteria are then displayed.
- 5. Select the interbranch transfer you want to authorize.
- 6. Click Open.
- 7. Click Authorised to authorize the interbranch transfer.

Tip:

You can also authorize the interbranch transfer without opening the interbranch transfer by selecting the interbranch transfer, and then clicking **Auth.** Alternatively, you can authorize the interbranch transfer at Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Interbranch transfer when the interbranch transfer is being created.

4.5.3 Fulfilling interbranch transfers

After creating and authorizing (if you have made it a mandatory step) the interbranch transfer, the next step is fulfilling the interbranch transfer. This step will process and register the stock transaction for the quantity leaving the issuing warehouse and the quantity received by the receiving warehouse.

	2			123 Wareho	use transf	ers - Exact	t			-	×
Ì	123	<u>Eile View H</u> elp									
ſ	© D	. 🖻 🖉 🛤 🚱									
ſ	Our re	f.	21723								
	Interb	ranch transfer number	20400280								
	Issuing	g warehouse	1 - Default warehouse								
	Receiv	ing warehouse	BUP - Business Unit Particulierer	1							
	Projec	t	20400243								
	Descri	ption	Warehouse transfer								
		Item	Description	Status	Stock	Free stock	Move	SIs. unit	Serial/batch	S/B	
I	1	A1000	A1000	Active	1	1	1	stuks	None		
			1 - Default warehouse								
	Total o	quantity	1								
										Drocess	ancel

To fulfill interbranch transfers:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Fulfilment.
- 2. At the Selection section, select Interbranch transfer.
- 3. Click Advanced to define the relevant criteria. You can choose to display a list of interbranch transfers for a specific fulfillment date by typing or selecting the date at **Fulfilment date**.
- 4. Click **Refresh** to display a list of authorized interbranch transfers.
- 5. Select the interbranch transfer you want to fulfill, and then type or select the date of the fulfillment at Transaction date. The date filled at Transaction date is the actual transaction date, whereas the fulfillment date filled at Fufilment date is the planned fulfillment date defined during the creation of the interbranch transfer.
- 6. Click Fulfilment. The Warehouse transfers screen will be displayed.
- 7. If you have selected the Warehouse locations check box at System → General → Settings, under Inventory settings, in the Fulfilment section, click in the Loc. column and you will see the details of the item location. Otherwise, proceed to step 8. Press F2 in the Destination column to select a location in the receiving warehouse, and then type the interbranch transfer quantity in the Move column. If this is a serial or batch item, you need to specify the serial or batch numbers of items you want to transfer by clicking in the S/B column. Click OK to save and return to the Warehouse transfers screen.
- 8. Then, type the interbranch transfer quantity in the **Move** column. If you have selected the **Warehouse locations** check box and have defined the transfer quantity in step 7, the **Move** column will automatically display the quantity defined earlier.
- 9. If this is a serial or batch item, you need to specify the serial or batch numbers of items you want to transfer by clicking in the S/B column. You will see the Serial numbers For CAS:VG01 or Batch numbers For CAS:VG01 screen where CAS:VG01 is the item you want to transfer. Select the serial or batch numbers from a list of numbers available in the current stock, and then click Select to link the numbers to the interbranch transfer and exit automatically.
- 10. Click Process to exit and save the interbranch transfer fulfillment.
- 11. In the **Print** screen, select a layout and click **Start** to print the issue slip. You will see a preview of the issue slip.

In step 7 or 8 of *To fulfill interbranch transfers*, the inventory settings determine the quantity you are allowed to enter in the **Move** column. If the **Interbranch transfers: Check free stock** is set to **Yes** and the **Warehouse location** check box is selected in the **Inventory settings**, the system will check the move quantity based on the physical stock per warehouse location and the free stock per warehouse. If the move quantity entered is more than the physical stock in the warehouse location, you will see a tool tip message at the entry box "Must be less than or equal to : Stock net of enrichment".

If the move quantity entered is more than the free stock in the warehouse, you will see a tool tip message at the entry box "Total Move Quantity Must be less than or equal to: Free stock".

If the **Interbranch transfers: Check free** stock is set to **Yes** but the **Warehouse location** check box is not selected, the system will validate the move quantity based on the free stock per warehouse and you will see a tool tip message if the move quantity is more than the free stock per warehouse.

4.5.4 Processing interbranch transfer receipts

You can also use a different warehouse as a transit in the process of delivering the items from the issuing warehouse to the receiving warehouse. An example of this is when imported items that need customs clearance are stored in the customs warehouse before being released to the receiving warehouse.

This step is relevant in Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ only if you select **intermediate warehouse** check box under **Inventory settings**. If you choose to use a transit warehouse, you will need to receive the transferred item into the receiving warehouse by processing the interbranch transfer receipt.

To process interbranch transfer receipts:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Interbranch transfer receipt.
- 2. At **Warehouse**, select the warehouse that will receive the interbranch transfer of items.
- 3. You can also type or select a fulfillment date at **Fulfilment date** to display only interbranch transfers with the planned fulfillment date.
- 4. Click Refresh. Interbranch transfers that match the defined criteria will be displayed.
- 5. Select the interbranch transfer that the warehouse is receiving.
- 6. Click Receipts.
- 7. Click I in the Loc. column and you will see the details of the item location. This column is available only if you have selected the Warehouse locations check box at System → General → Settings, under Inventory settings, in the Fulfilment section. Otherwise, proceed to step 8. Press F2 in the Destination column to select a location in the receiving warehouse, and then click OK to exit.
- 8. Click **Process** to save the interbranch transfer receipt.

4.6 LOCATION TRANSFERS

In Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, a warehouse can have multiple warehouse locations. When you move stock from one warehouse location to another location within a warehouse, the process is called a location transfer. The location transfer function is available only if you have selected the **Warehouse locations** check box at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, under **Inventory settings**, in the **Fulfilment section**.

Warehouse locations are used to store, locate, and retrieve items from stock and can be as specific as the storage bin or shelf that the item is stored. Transfer of stock from one warehouse location to another is needed in some cases when the item is made obsolete and has to be removed from its current location to another to avoid mixing with the other items.

Another purpose for allocating different warehouse locations within the same warehouse is to identify the status of an item from its current warehouse location. For example, if the item is in the receiving location, then we know from the current warehouse location that the item is waiting to be received into the warehouse.

When the item is processed and has already been received, it is then transported to the appropriate warehouse location in the warehouse. Therefore, you need to do a warehouse location transfer to reflect the movement of the item and transferred quantity.

The following topic is relevant to this section:

• Creating location transfers

2				001 l	ocation t	ransfers - Exact					-		×
001	<u>F</u> ile Vie <u>w</u>	<u>H</u> elp											
© î	t C. E «	0											
Entry r	number		15910002										
Transa	ction date		18/11/2015										
Project	t					[م							
	Item	Descript	ion	Status	Location	Location description	Stock	Move	Sls. unit	Loc.	Serial/b	atch	•
1 2 3 4	BEK0001	R.P.Take	Away beker 250cc 1	Active	B01	B01	11	0	Doos	R	None		
5													Ŧ
Wareh	Warehouse		- Centraal magazijn			Total quantity		0					
Item		R.P.Take Away beker 250cc 1000 st.											
											ा Process	Car	3 ncel

4.6.1 Creating location transfers

To create location transfers:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Location transfers.
- 2. In the **Warehouse** section, select the warehouse and location for which you want to create the location transfer.
- 3. In the Extra section, select the unit to be used for the transfer.
- 4. Type or select the location transfer date at **Transaction date**. Based on the unit selected, the quantity displayed or typed during the creation of the location transfer will be in terms of that unit.
- 5. Click **New**. The **Location transfers** screen will be displayed.
- 6. Type or select an item to be transferred in the **Item** column. If you select by pressing F2, you will see a list of items with the available current free stock. Select the item and click **Select**. By default, the **Stock** column displays the quantity in stock.
- 7. In the **Location** column, type or select (by pressing F2) a warehouse location you want to transfer from.
- 8. Click so in the Loc. column to select the destination warehouse location you are transferring the items to, and you will see the Location transfers screen. Type or select a location in the Destination column to select a location in the same warehouse. Then type the location transfer quantity in the Move column. If this is a serial or batch item, you need to specify the serial or batch numbers of items that you want to transfer by clicking sin in the S/B column. You will see the Serial numbers For GC:V200 or Batch numbers For CAS:VG01 screen where GC:V200 is the item code you want to transfer. Select the serial or batch numbers from a list of numbers available in the current stock, and then click Select to link the numbers to the location transfer and exit automatically.
- 9. Click OK to exit automatically and return to the Location transfers screen.
- 10. Click **Process** to create the location transfer. You will see a preview of the location transfers details in the **Report** screen.
- 11. Click **Close** to exit and save the location transfer.

4.7 INVENTORY COSTING

Inventory costing is the process of assigning the right cost to the cost of goods sold and ending inventory. Cost price fluctuates over time due to factors such as inflation, demand, and supply. Therefore, inventory costing is needed to capture the changes in the cost price and reflect the changes in the closing stock and cost of goods sold.

It is important to capture the cost price fluctuations to enable better strategic planning and strategic decision making purposes such as estimating the monetary value of inventory, the margin from sales, the cost of manufacturing, cost of operation, and the value of assets in a company. Inventory costing is usually done at periodic intervals to close a financial period.

Fluctuations of cost price in incoming transactions are reflected in the current stock value by updating the outgoing stock transactions (in the stock account) and cost of goods sold (in the profit and loss account).

To reflect the changes in cost, you need to calculate the value of your closing stock. You can then use the closing stock value to determine the cost of goods sold and current stock value. The cost of goods sold during an accounting period is determined by the opening stock, the purchased stock, and the closing stock. The following formula illustrates the relationship among the different amount:

- C = O + P E
- C = Cost of goods sold
- O = Opening stock
- P = Purchased stock
- E = Closing stock

The following methods can be used to determine the ending inventory:

- Periodic inventory method This method records the opening inventory quantity but does not keep track of the quantity and cost during the buying and selling of stock. It derives the cost of goods sold using physical count of the stock at periodic intervals (for example, year-end, quarterly, monthend). This method keeps the cost of maintaining the inventory count low but inventory data is not updated (inaccuracy cannot be adjusted immediately).
- **Perpetual inventory method** This method records the opening inventory quantity and at the same time updates the quantity and cost during the buying and selling of stock. Thus, the inventory information is constantly updated.

The stock valuation method a company uses will have an impact on the balance sheet, income statement (gross profit margin), and statement of cash flow. Stock valuation methods use incoming and outgoing stock transactions to calculate the stock value.

Incoming transactions are transactions of items coming into the warehouse, such as purchase order receipts, return receipts, positive stock counts (physical quantity is more than the system quantity) and production receipts. Outgoing transactions are transactions of items leaving the warehouse such as sales order deliveries, return deliveries, negative stock counts (the physical quantity is less than the system quantity) and production issuing. The stock valuation methods available in Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ are as follows:

- Standard cost price
- Standard cost price (Classic)
- Average purchase price
- FIFO
- LIFO
- Real time APP

Standard cost price and Standard cost price (Classic)

The **Standard cost price** method uses a predetermined fixed cost price for the item. This method is simple to use and easy to implement. It uses a standard cost regardless of the change in the cost price of the item.

However, this method does not provide the accuracy needed by some companies to reflect the actual fluctuations in cost at a particular time or period. It is mostly used for pricing items with a stable and regulated cost price (ceiling price) like sugar, rice, and flour.

The difference between **Standard cost price** and **Standard cost price (Classic)** is that **Standard cost price** uses the cost price at the time of purchase receipt whereas **Standard cost price (Classic)** uses the fixed cost price in item maintenance.

The following is an example of stock valuation method using the Standard cost price method:

	Quantity	Cost per unit	Standard cost
Opening inventory	10	\$100	\$100
Buy on February 1	10	\$97.20	\$100
Buy on March 14	10	\$98.80	\$100
Sell on March 30	10	\$100	
Buy on April 24	10	\$99.60	\$100
Sales for the rest of the year	22	\$100	

Average purchase price

The **Average purchase price** method is used in determining cost prices that tend to fluctuate but where the fluctuations are not significant. This method is used to value items with minor cost fluctuations. The following formula illustrates how the cost price is derived using **Average purchase price**:

Average purchase price = OC + PC/TQ

OC = Opening inventory cost

PC = Purchased inventory cost

TQ = Total quantity

The following is an example of stock valuation using the **Average purchase price** method:

	Quantity	Cost per unit	Standard cost
Opening inventory	10	\$100	\$100
Buy on February 1	10	\$98	\$99
Buy on March 14	10	\$97	\$98.30
Buy on April 24	10	\$99	\$98.50
Sell on April 28	22	\$98.50	

FIFO

Both the **FIFO** (First-In-First-Out) and **LIFO** (Last-In-First-Out) methods use the order in which the transaction occurs to calculate stock value. The **FIFO** method assumes that the first item purchased is the first item used/sold. It takes the purchase price of the earliest incoming transaction and updates the stock value when an outflow transaction occurs.

The **FIFO** method is consistent with a merchandiser's operation because it is normal practice to use/sell the older stock first. Therefore, this method can provide a good indication of the closing stock value. Assuming that prices are rising, this method will result in a lower cost of goods sold since it uses the cost price of older stock, thus, raising the net income. However, the higher net income will mean that the company has to pay more taxes.

	Quantity	Cost per unit	Cost of goods sold
Opening inventory	10	\$90	
Buy on February 1	10	\$96	
Buy on March 14	10	\$98	
Buy on April 24	10	\$99	
Sell on April 28	22		10 units x \$90 + 10 units x \$96 + 2 units x \$98 = \$2056

The following is an example of stock valuation using the FIFO method:

LIFO

By contrast, the **LIFO** (Last-In-First-Out) method assumes that the last item purchased is the first item used/sold. It takes the purchase price of the last incoming transaction and updates the stock value when an outflow transaction occurs. Since this method assumes that newer items are used/sold first, the closing stock value will reflect the prices of older stock which could be obsolete or have already greatly depreciated. Therefore, it is not a good indicator of the closing stock value.

The following is an example of stock valuation using the LIFO method:

	Quantity	Cost per unit	Cost of goods sold
Buy on February 1	10	\$90	
Buy on March 14	10	\$96	
Buy on April 24	10	\$98	
Sell on April 28	10	\$99	
Buy on February 1	22		10 units x \$99 + 10 units x \$98 + 2 units x \$96 = \$2162

The following topics are relevant to this section:

- Stock valuation
- Stock revaluation
- Stock value adjustment
- ABC Analysis

4.7.1 Stock valuation

Stock valuation examines incoming transactions and calculates the current stock value using a prespecified stock valuation method. It then updates the stock value and adjusts the cost of goods sold in the outgoing transactions. Stock valuation is conducted during the closing of a financial period (for example, bi-weekly, monthly, quarterly). This is done periodically to determine the closing stock value at the end of a financial period and to update the cost of goods sold for the preparation of financial statement reports.

In Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, the stock valuation process involves two main steps. Firstly, the stock valuation function examines all the incoming transactions within a specific period (range of transaction or reporting dates), or of specific items (range of items, item groups, or assortments). Based on the selected stock valuation method, the stock valuation function then uses this information to derive the new cost price and thus, calculate the closing stock value.

The new cost price is then used to adjust the cost of goods sold for outgoing transactions for the specified time period or items. If you are using the **Average purchase price** method for your stock valuation, the item maintenance cost (at **Cost price** under the **Basics** tab at Inventory \rightarrow Items \rightarrow Maintain) is also updated during this process. The stock valuation function only processes the transactions that occurred in open financial periods.

Due to an increasingly huge amount of transactions accumulated over time, Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ allows you to process the stock valuation within a specific period of time and/or for specific items. Thus, you will get accurate information within a relatively short time.

To process stock valuations:

- 1. To select a stock valuation method, go to **Inventory settings** at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings.
- 2. In the Entry section, select the valuation method you want to use to process the stock value.
- 3. Go to Inventory → Warehouse management → Stock valuation. The menu path is available only if **Standard cost price (Classic)** is not selected at **Valuation method**.
- 4. In the **Stock valuation** screen, the valuation method you want to use is automatically selected based on the method selected in step 1. If you have selected a method different from the one defined in **Inventory settings**, you will only be able to preview the stock valuation results but not able to process the stock valuation.
- 5. In the **Criteria** section, you can define the transaction or reporting date(s), item groups, and items to process the stock valuation for a selected time period or item or for a range of items only.
- 6. In the **Revalue positive counts** section, you can choose to revalue positive counts (physical quantity is more than the system quantity). Select the **Zero amounts** check box to update the positive stock count with either cost price or purchase price. If you are using the **Average purchase price** method or the **Valuation method per item** at System → General → Settings, under **Inventory Settings**, you have the option to select all amounts.
- 7. To preview the stock valuation results before the actual processing, select Totals only or Detailed information in the Report section. The Totals only option displays the summary of the stock valuation for a list of items. The Detailed information displays the transactions that were processed to calculate the final stock valuation results in addition to the summary of the stock valuation for individual items.
- 8. After defining the relevant criteria, click **Process**.

You can choose to use the transaction date or reporting date in step 5 to further specify and limit the volume of inventory transactions for the stock valuation. You will see **Transaction date** or **Reporting date** in the **Criteria** section depending on your setting of **Check: Closed periods** in the **General settings** at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings.

Transaction dates are the actual dates of the inventory transactions whereas reporting dates are the dates the inventory transactions are recorded in the general ledger. The transaction and reporting date can differ, for example if you receive an order of goods on January 1, 2012, and then process the receipt on January 2, 2012, the transaction date is January 1, 2012 and the reporting date is January 2, 2012.

After the stock valuation process, you can view the new cost prices in the stock positions report at Inventory \rightarrow Reports \rightarrow Stock positions. The stock positions report calculates the new stock quantity by summing up all the amount and quantity for incoming transactions. In addition to that, the report also calculates the new stock value based on the updated cost of goods sold reflected in the outgoing transactions. For details on the stock position report, see 5.1 Stock Position.

4.7.2 Stock revaluation

Like stock valuation, the stock revaluation function examines incoming transactions and calculates the stock value based on the pre-specified stock valuation method. However, unlike stock valuation, it calculates the new cost by making additional adjustments to the stock and cost of goods sold transactions.

While stock valuation is done during an open period, stock revaluation is done only to capture changes in cost prices in a previously closed financial period (which can be yearly, quarterly, monthly).

During the stock revaluation process, the stock quantity is calculated and the item cost price will be determined based on the stock valuation method you have determined earlier. The difference between the calculated stock value and the actual stock value will be written off in a revaluation entry.

During the stock revaluation in Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, two financial journal entries are updated if there is a new cost price captured and there are adjustments to be made. The first transaction is the updating of the new stock value in the existing incoming transaction in the stock account (balance sheet account).

The account used to adjust the new stock value is adjusted in the account defined at **Stock** in item maintenance (under the **Financial** tab in Inventory \rightarrow Items \rightarrow Maintain). The next step is the updating of the adjustment amount in the cost of goods sold account (profit and loss account). After processing the stock revaluation, the new stock value and the respective revaluation adjustment amounts will be updated to the specified accounts.

) -	- 11 D.	0										
	<u><u></u> <u></u> </u>											
intry	number	15910002										
ransa	ction date	18/11/2015										
Descri	ption											
-	Item	Description	Centur	SIs. unit	Stock	Value	Manuarahua	Devaluation	Brofit Borr	Profit & Loss accour	Burchase account	Selection
1		R.P. Supremo beans	Active		43	390.55	390.57		Profit	9050	3000	
2		R.P. Espresso Dolce.	Active		79	816.32	816.31	-0.01		9050	3000	
3	1. HONOROUS	R.P. Cafe Creme beans	Active		38	411.66	411.65	-0.01	Loss	9050	3000	
4	MCB0001	MacBean Regular	Active		24	129.84	130.94	1.1	Profit	9050	3000	<u>a</u> aaaaaaaaaaaaaaa
5	2 March and a second	MacBean Mild	Active		64	346.24	349.18	2.94	Profit	9050	3000	V
6	MCB0003	MacBean Dark	Active		44	238.04	240.06	2.02	Profit	9050	3000	
7	MCB0004	MacBean Extra Dark	Active	kg	14	75.74	76.38	0.64	Profit	9050	3000	
8	THE0011	R.P. Thee Assorti 12x20x2gr.	Active	Doos	-0	6.32	0	-6.32	Loss	9050	3000	
9	VER0003	Etiket voor	Active	stuk	10710	2945.22	2945.25	0.03	Profit	9050	3000	
10	VER0004	Etiket achter	Active	stuk	10727	2949.9	2949.93	0.03	Profit	9050	3000	~
tem								Total	amount	0.44 EU	R Profit	
tenfor	2 Lorr acro	unt.								0.00		
		unit.										
	& Loss acco ase account	unt										
-94 15										X	\$	8

To process stock revaluations:

- 1. Go to System \rightarrow Logistics \rightarrow Revaluation.
- 2. Define the relevant criteria in the Range section to include only item(s) you want to revaluate.
- 3. In the **Extra** section, type or select the transaction/reporting date to revaluate inventory transactions registered on or before the entered date.
- 4. After defining the relevant criteria, click Start. You will see the Revaluation screen.
- 5. In the Profit & Loss account column, specify the account in which you want to register the adjusted amount. The amount to be adjusted is automatically displayed in the Revaluation column. The stock (purchased items) account is displayed by default in the Purchase account column. This account will be used to register the new stock value as displayed in the New value column.
- 6. Click **Process** to process the revaluation and exit.

You can choose to use the transaction date or reporting date in step 3 to further specify and limit the volume of inventory transactions for the stock revaluation. You will see **Transaction date** or **Reporting date** in the **Extra** section depending on your setting at **Check: Closed periods** at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, under **General settings**.

Transaction dates are the actual dates of the inventory transactions whereas reporting dates are the dates the inventory transactions are recorded in the general ledger. The transaction and reporting date can differ, for example if you receive an order of goods on January 1, 2012, and then process the receipt on January 2, 2012, the transaction date is January 1, 2012 and the reporting date is January 2, 2012.

4.7.3 Stock value adjustment

A stock value adjustment is similar to a stock revaluation but unlike stock revaluation, it does not alter the existing stock quantity, nor does it adjust the cost of goods sold in the outgoing transactions. Instead, a new value is adjusted in the cost of goods sold transaction, and is used in the next stock valuation calculation to get the new item cost, current stock value, and update the cost of goods sold.

While you may use the stock value revaluation for the adjusting stock value and quantity in a closed period, you use stock value adjustment to adjust new stock value in an open period.

The stock value adjustment is used only during an open financial period. During the stock value adjustment, two transactions are made. The first is the registration of the adjustment value in the stock account (balance sheet). The second transaction is the registration of the adjustment value in the cost of goods sold account (profit and loss account). The stock value adjustment will be reflected in the item cost price, stock value, and cost of goods sold in the next stock valuation.

G			001 Stock	value adju	istment - Ex	act		×
001 <u>F</u>	Eile <u>E</u> dit	<u>H</u> elp						
© 🛍	8							
Entry nu	umber		15910002					
Transac	tion date		18/11/2015					
G/L acco	ount		0020	Ľà.				
Descript	tion							1
	Item	Descripti	on	Warehouse	Stock value	Adjustment	G/L account	
1	Item CAC0002			Warehouse	Stock value 1,791.70		G/L account 0020	
1 2								
2								
2								
2 3 4								•

To process stock value adjustments:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Warehouse management \rightarrow Stock value adjustment.
- 2. In the **Stock value adjustment** screen at **Transaction date**, type or select the transaction date for which you want to register this adjustment.
- At G/L account, type or select the stock account in which you want to debit the stock value adjustment.
- 4. In the entry lines, and in the **Item** column, type or select (by pressing F2) the item for which you want to adjust the stock value.
- 5. Press TAB once to define the following columns in the entry lines. You can type or select by pressing F2, to define the following details of the stock value adjustment:
 - Warehouse Type or select the warehouse that is storing the item for which you want to adjust the stock value.
 - Adjustment Type the amount for the adjustment.
 - G/L account Type or select the cost of goods sold (profit and loss) account in which you
 want to credit the stock value adjustment.
- 6. Click **Process** to process the adjusted amounts and exit automatically.
- 7. After the stock valuation process, you can view the new cost prices in the stock positions report at Inventory → Reports → Stock positions.

4.7.4 ABC Analysis

An ABC analysis is a classification of a group of products or items to form three categories (A, B, C) for stock control and planning purposes. After processing the stock value for the items in the warehouse, an ABC analysis is done to determine the value of an item relative to another in a warehouse, and group the items into classes that represent the item's relative values.

Criteria for the stock analysis may include the quantity used, quantity sold, revenue generated, cost of goods sold, purchase cost and profit generated. Based on the item's relative values as a result of the ABC analysis, we can determine the frequency of an item's cycle count.

To process an ABC analysis:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Item management \rightarrow ABC analysis.
- 2. Define the relevant criteria in the **Range** section.
- At Sort by in the Options section, define the sorting method to be used to present the ABC analysis report:
 - Quantity used Items will be sorted in terms of the total quantity fulfilled.
 - Sales quantity Items will be sorted in terms of the total quantity sold.
 - Revenue Items will be sorted in terms of revenue generated by sales.
 - Cost of goods sold Items will be sorted in terms of cost of goods sold.
 - Purchase cost Items will be sorted in terms of the total purchase cost.
 - Margin Items will be sorted in terms of the profit.
- 4. In the **ABC analysis** section, type the percentage of items you want to categorize the items based on the sorting method. The total of the three percentages for **A**, **B**, and **C** respectively should amount to 100.
- 5. Click Start to generate the ABC analysis in the form of data and graph in Microsoft Excel.

5. MANAGEMENT INFORMATION

Now that you have items and warehouses to store them and have conducted transactions by adding, selling, and moving your stocks, you can compile all the available information and produce certain managerial-relevant information in the format that you want to assist in the decision-making process.

Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ provides comprehensive reporting functionalities to maximize the usage of all your information contained in the system. To effectively make decisions, you must have relevant information and the facility to present the information in the format that you want. The reports generated depend on the criteria and how you define these criteria.

With Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+, you can access information such as the position of your items at any single point in time. This provides you with an overview of your organization's capability to meet current and future demands for your items.

You can also analyze the movement of items in your organization which allows you to place and manage your items in the various warehouses more efficiently. Another use is to monitor the ordered items that have not been delivered yet and this may indirectly show the level of customer service your organization is providing.

5.1 STOCK POSITION

It is useful for organizations to know the position of their stock at any point in time. This allows managers to properly manage the organization's stocks such as ensuring that stock levels of popular items are enough for an upcoming holiday season after taking into account stocks in transit and stocks that have been reserved for orders made. For instance, a manager may want to find out the current status of all the warehouses to see whether additional quantity of items has to be replenished.

To check your stock position, go to Inventory \rightarrow Reports \rightarrow Stock positions. You may click **Advanced** to show additional criteria. Define the relevant criteria, and then click **Display** to generate the report.

Some criteria to note include **Show**, where you select either **Purchase units** or **Sales units**. This option determines whether the report will show the quantities in **Purchase** or **Sales** units. Depending on what you have defined for an item, the unit for purchase can be different from the one for sales. For instance, you may purchase keyboards in boxes whereby one box contains 12 keyboards while you sell one keyboard each time.

Another option is **Lines with quantity 0** where it will list existing items that have the quantity 0 when the check box is selected. The **New:Items** option lists new items that have no prior transactions and should have a quantity of 0.

The **Planner** option searches for the selected employee that is responsible for planning.

Varehouse	Item	Item description	Item group	Description	Status	Unit	Item price	PO level	Maximum	Supplier	Delivery time	Stock
1	BEK0001		10	Interne producten	Active	Doos	67.65	0.00	0.00	60120	2	11.00
1	BEK0002		10	Interne producten	Active	Doos	32.18	0.00	0.00	60120	2	4.00
1	BEK0003		10	Interne producten	Active	Doos	105.38	0.00	0.00	60120	2	6.00
1	BEK0004		10	Interne producten	Active	Doos	105.38	0.00	0.00	60120	2	5.00
1	BON0001		10	Interne producten	Active	Doos	20.18	0.00	0.00	60120	2	3.58
1	BON0002		10	Interne producten	Active	Doos	22.65	0.00	0.00	60120	2	6.58
1	BON0003		10	Interne producten	Active	Doos	22.65	0.00	0.00	60120	2	1.25
												•

Essentially, the **Stock positions** report provides information on the stock level of each item in each warehouse. For management personnel, the report is useful in obtaining the current overall status of stock levels of all the organization's products. This will assist in making decisions especially on whether to replenish the stock from suppliers or whether to transfer the existing stock from another warehouse.

In the example, the **PO level** column shows the minimum recommended quantity for the item. It helps in determining the minimum quantity that should be ordered in order to maintain a safe level of items in the warehouse as decided by your organization. Usually, a safe level is the quantity that can still sustain sales while replenishments are made or in transit.

Other important columns include the **Quantity to be received** and **Quantity to be delivered** columns. The former shows any incoming stock while the latter shows outgoing stock. The **Available** column shows the current free stock available for that item in a particular warehouse. If the total is negative, it means that the item does not have enough quantity to meet sales already made.

You can access other information by clicking the relevant buttons. The **Totals only** button shows the total quantity in hand, and the expected inflow and outflow of the items. Selecting an item will enable other buttons. Clicking **Allocation** will display the **Allocation** screen where you can set aside stocks for other purposes such as for sales that are not delivered yet. The **Export** button allows you to export the report to Microsoft Excel.

5.2 SHORTAGE

The **Shortage** report is useful for managers to quickly ascertain the items that have insufficient quantity to meet demands. With this knowledge in hand, they will be able to decide where and how to allocate the people in the organization. The report also takes into account items that are scheduled to be received and the expected delivery time. This allows a more accurate gauge as to how soon additional items need to be purchased.

To check your stock shortage, go to Inventory \rightarrow Reports \rightarrow Shortage. You may click **Advanced** to show additional filtering criteria. Define the relevant criteria, and then click **Display** to generate the report.

You can fill in a date at **Reference date** to calculate the shortage of stock based on the date defined in this field. Some criteria to note after clicking **Advanced** include the **Report options** section where you can specify whether to display purchase orders that are unauthorized and/or not printed. This allows you to take into account purchase orders that have not been processed yet but might affect your future stock levels when the orders are processed later.

a				001	Stoc	k positio	ns - Sho	rtage -	Exact				×
001 <u>Eile</u>	e <u>E</u> dit I	<u>H</u> elp											
© ?													
Warehouse	ltem	Item description	Status	Item group	Unit	Stock	PO level	Maximum	Qty. to be rcvd.	Available	Free stock	Quantity to be delivered	Avg
1	KM		Active		km	0.000			3.000	-12.000	0.000	15.000	
1	MAC0001		Active	Interne producten	stuk	0.000			0.000	-1.000	0.000	1.000	
1	MAC0006	Coffee Machine	Active	Interne producten	stuk	0.000			0.000	-1.000	0.000	1.000	
1	MAC0009		Active	Interne producten	stuk	0.000			0.000	-1.000	0.000	1.000	
1	MAC0017		Active	Interne producten	stuk	0.000			0.000	-2.000	0.000	2.000	
1	MAC0021		Active	Interne producten	stuk	0.000			0.000	-1.000	0.000	1.000	
1	OHC01		Active		year	-5.000			0.000	-5.000	0.000	0.000	-
4												Þ	•
Purchase	value		2.45										
Σ		(=:		6	10			E• ×	
Totals on	ly <u>W</u> are	ehouse I P <u>u</u> rch	nase or	d Sa <u>l</u> es orders	<u>S</u> er	vice orders	Stock	/aluati	Ca <u>r</u> d	<u>l</u> tem		Export <u>C</u> lose	

In this example, the **Shortage** report provides a quick view on all items that do not have sufficient stock. This is after taking into account the stock in hand and stock that is expected to arrive. This will be compared to the expected quantity ordered by customers. This is reflected in the example's first entry whereby the **Quantity to be delivered** column displays 15 units. The **Qty. to be rcvd**. column shows that there are 3 units that will be arriving soon. This causes the **Available** column to display -12 units. The negative value shows that quantity is short of 12 units. This is reflected in the **Shortage** column.

You can obtain other information by clicking the relevant buttons. The **Totals only**, **Allocation**, and **Export** buttons are explained in *5.1 Stock Position*. The **Warehouse location** button shows the quantity of the item in each location of that warehouse. The **Card** button shows the stock movements of the selected item.

5.3 DELIVERABLE FROM STOCK

The **Deliverable from stock** report shows sales order for items that are scheduled to be delivered to customers but have not been done so yet. With this information, you can quickly rectify the situation and improve on your organization's customer service.

This report also helps to identify inefficiency in your organization when you compare the dates of the sales order with the current date. Usually, the longer the period is between these dates, the more inefficient your delivery methods are. Some of these inefficiencies can be due to late delivery from suppliers, delivery methods of your organization, and procedures involving the delivery of stocks.

To check sales orders that are not delivered yet, go to Inventory \rightarrow Reports \rightarrow Deliverable from stock. Define the appropriate criteria and click **Display**.

001 <u>Eile</u>	e <u>E</u> dit <u>H</u>	telp										
00												
Selection	⊙ De	eliverable	O Shortage									
Sales order	Warehouse	Туре	Your reference	Sales order date	Attachment	Notes	Fulfilment date	Description	Debtor name	Invo	oice debtor na	me
20028	1	Sales order	Bestel.: 20028	2/2/2011			2/2/2011		Cafe de Lantaarn	Cafe	e de Lantaarn	
20029	1	Sales order	Bestel.: 20029	1/2/2011			14/2/2011	P20029	Mevr. Viemmiks	Mey	r. Viemmiks	
20030	1	Sales order	Bestel.: 20030	2/2/2011			2/2/2011		Pizzeria Vesuvius	Pizz	eria Vesuvius	
20032	1	Sales order	Bestel.: 20032	4/2/2011			4/2/2011	Raamcontract order	Cafe de Lantaarn	Cafe	de Lantaarn	
20033	1	Sales order	Bestel: 20033	2/2/2011	Image: A state of the state		12/2/2011		Chicken Corner (region	r zuid) Chic	tken Corner (re	egion zuid)
20038	1	Sales order	Bestel.: 20038	10/2/2011			15/2/2011		Brasserie Pigalle	Bras	serie Pigalle	
20043	1	Sales order	Bestel.: 20043	2/3/2011	~		2/3/2011	Machine en servies	Cafe Hout	Cafe	Hout	
20046	1	Sales order	Vaste verkoopo	7/3/2011			7/3/2011	Vaste best. mrt	DSA Limburg	DSA	Limburg	
20051	1	Sales order	Bestel.: 20051	30/3/2011	1		28/4/2011	P20051: 1 machine	Pizzeria Vesuvius	Pizz	eria Vesuvius	
20054	1	Sales order	Installation	15/2/2012			15/2/2012		Restaurant Enkhuizen	1 Rest	aurant Enkhu	izen 1
20055	1	Sales order	PO: 20055	15/2/2012			15/2/2012		Restaurant Enkhuizen	1 Rest	aurant Enkhu	izen 1
1		Jeics of Co	10.20000	1.5 EPEVIE			INDEVE		nesteratorie enterateri	i nes		•

In the **Deliverable from stock** screen, you can select to view the sales orders based on the stock deliverable or stock shortage. Select **Deliverable** to list sales orders that you can deliver with enough stock but have yet to do so. Select **Shortage** to list sales orders that you are unable to deliver due to insufficient stock.

Selecting a sales order and clicking **Zoom** will display the **Sales orders** screen with the details of the order. If you click **Debtor card**, you will see more information with regards to the transaction or the customer. This report can be exported to Microsoft Excel by clicking **Export**.

5.4 ITEM TRANSACTIONS

The **Item transactions** report lists all transactions that are related to your organization's items. This allows you to effectively view all the item's movements from a single screen.

To view your items' transactions, go to Inventory \rightarrow Reports \rightarrow Item transactions. You may click **Advanced** to show additional criteria. Define the appropriate criteria and click **Display** to view the report.

Q			001 Sto	ck tra	ansactions - Ex	act		-		<					
001 <u>e</u>	ile <u>E</u> dit <u>I</u>	<u>H</u> elp													
68	© 0														
ltem	Warehouse	Status	ltem description	Unit	Previous balance	Received	Fulfilled	Balance	Stock						
BEK0001	1	Active		Doos		14.000	-3.000	11.000	11.000	*					
BEK0002	1	Active		Doos		4.000		4.000	4.000						
BEK0003	1	Active		Doos		6.000		6.000	6.000						
BEK0004	1	Active		Doos		5.000		5.000	5.000						
BON0001	1	Active		kg		159.000	-116.000	43.000	43.000						
BON0002	1	Active		kg		111.000	-32.000	79.000	79.000						
BON0003	1	Active		kg		25.000	-10.000	15.000	15.000						
BON0004	1	Active		kg		66.000		66.000	66.000						
BON0005	1	Active		kg		80.000		80.000	80.000	•					
•									►						
						10) [] →	X						
						Ca <u>r</u> d	<u>I</u> tem	Expor	t Clos	e					

The **Stock transactions** report provides information on the movement of your organization's items. The **Received** and **Fulfilled** columns show the items that have been received and delivered within the specified transaction dates. The **Balance** column shows the balance of stock left after taking into account the quantity received and delivered while the **Stock** column shows the balance of stock after taking into account the opening balance of the items. Click **Export** to view the report in Microsoft Excel.

5.5 FLOW OF GOODS

The **Flow of goods** report shows the inflow and outflow of your organization's items. It allows you to closely monitor the movements of your items. If required, you can also use it to verify a sales or purchase order by comparing the order to the report on information such as the warehouse, item, and number of units involved.

To view the report, go to Inventory \rightarrow Reports \rightarrow Flow of goods. You may click **Advanced** to show more criteria including the classification of customers. Define the appropriate criteria and click **Display** to view the report.

٩					001 In	iventory - Ex	act				×
001	<u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit	t <u>H</u> elp									
© 8)										
Order	Warehouse	Item code	Debtor	Debtor name	Supplier	Supplier name	Descri	iption	Fulfilled	Fulfilled (EUR)	R
	1	ALG					Algem	ieen	2	25.82	P
	1	ALG					Kick-o	off vergadering	2	71.10	10
	1	ALG					Kick-o	off	2	104.28	
	1	ALG					Intro s	sessie 2	2	19.37	
	1	ALG					Sessie	2	2	78.21	
	1	ALG					Intro-I	bespreking	2	104.28	
	1	ALG					Intro I	MAC0027	2	19.37	
	1	ALG					Intro I	MAC0017	2	53.33	
_	1	ALG					Voortį	gang bespreken	2	53.33	ŀ
										•	
								Received		86.487 Item	c
								Received		1,601.24 EU	
									204		
							Fulfilled			2,732 Item	
								Fulfilled	272	2,842.07 EU	к
	G	=				9		1		X	
E	xport	Note	A	tachment	Creditor	card Add	re <u>s</u> s	Item card	Order	Close	

The report records the items' flow in the relevant **Fulfilled** or **Received** columns. Depending on how you choose to group the report (**Warehouse**, **Item**, or **Fulfillment**), the report will group the purchase and sales orders based on your selection. If the report is not grouped, you will see the purchase and sales orders specified in the **Order** column, and each line tells you the debtor or creditor that was involved as well as the item and quantity of that transaction and whether it was a receipt or a delivery. If it is grouped, you will need to click the **Zoom** button to see this.

The total received and fulfilled amount will also be displayed at the bottom right of the report.

5.6 G/L ANALYSIS - ITEM / WAREHOUSE

The **G/L** analysis - item / warehouse report provides information on the financial transactions for every transaction. From this report, you can view, at a single place, the general ledger (G/L) accounts involved for each transaction.

To view the **G/L** analysis - item/warehouse report, go to Inventory \rightarrow Reports \rightarrow G/L analysis – item / warehouse. You may click **Advanced** to show more criteria. Define the appropriate criteria and click Display to view the report. You can choose to sort the report by item or G/L account by selecting the relevant option under the **General** section.

🔍 001 G/L analysis - item / warehouse - Exact 🛛 🗖 📉							
001 <u>F</u> ile	<u>E</u> dit <u>H</u>	elp					
© ?							
Warehouse	ltem code	Description:ltem code	G/L	Description:GL account	Balance		
1	BEK0001		2300		-158.00	-	
1	BEK0001		2400		39.50		
1	BEK0001		3000		434.50		
1	BEK0001		7000	Kostprijs verkopen	-316.00		
1	BEK0002		2300		-78.00		
1	BEK0002		3000		78.00		
1	BEK0003		2300		-349.20		
1	BEK0003		3000		349.20		
1	BEK0004		2300		-306.00	•	
•					•		
				E2	Clos	se	

The relevant account code reflected in the **G/L** column has been defined earlier for each item. This is specified in the item maintenance card accessible via Inventory \rightarrow Items \rightarrow Maintain, under the **Financial** tab.

The **Balance** column shows the total amount for all transactions related to the item for that particular G/L account. Sometimes it is possible for the **Balance** column to have a negative figure. This shows that either the account is a credit balance account or the transactions resulted in a negative balance. This report can be exported to Microsoft Excel by clicking **Export**. You can then view and save the Microsoft Excel file for future reference.

5.7 PROFIT CALCULATION

To view the profitability of items sold, you can use the **Profit calculation** report. The profit calculation for each item is displayed in amount and percentage. This report only includes items that have been actually delivered to maintain the accuracy of the report and not to be distorted by including items that are not delivered yet.

The report also includes non-physical items and is thus, useful for viewing items sold based on hours such as services.

To view the profit calculation report, go to Inventory \rightarrow Item management \rightarrow Profit calculation, define the relevant criteria and click **Refresh**.

Warehous	eAll									
Date				to 🛛					All	
Items			C	à to				C. 🗹	All	
B B Asso	ortments									
ltem	Description	Sold	Average price EUR	Cost price EUR	Purchase price EUR	Markup	Markup %	Purchase quantity	Revenue	1
ALG	Algemeen - intern	17	0.000	40.000	0.000	-40.00	0	0.00	0.00	• [
BEK0001	R.P.Take Away beker 250cc 1000 st.	2	0.000	39.500	0.000	-39.50	0	-1.00	0.00	J.
BON0001	R.P. Supremo beans	115	17.411	9.083	9.083	8.33	92	96.00	2,002.31	
BON0002	R.P. Espresso Dolce.	32	22.084	10.333	10.333	11.75	114	60.00	706.70	1
BON0003	R.P. Espresso Mezzo	10	21.692	10.250	10.250	11.44	112	0.00	216.92	
BON0007	Bonen Brazilian Regular	78	0.000	4.250	4.250	-4.25	0	120.00	0.00	
BON0008	Bonen Brazilian Mild	85	0.000	4.250	4.250	-4.25	0	120.00	0.00	
4									•	۲
Revenue	462,635.45 EUR Cost price 2	66,906.3	22 EUR Purch	ase price 266,56	7.968 EUR Ma	rkup 195,	729.13	Markup %	73	

The **Average price** column is derived from the average sales price calculated from all the items sold. This is because sales prices are not necessarily the same when we sell to different customers and when sold at different times due to different pricing and discount structures that are applied according to your organization's policies.

The **Margin** column is derived from the average price less the purchase price for that item. A negative value means the item is not profitable whereby the purchase price is higher than the average sales price. The **Margin %** column is the percentage of margin over the purchase price. This shows the profitability of the item in percentage.

At the bottom of the screen are totals of the corresponding information. These totals will give an overview of the profitability of sold items for the organization as a whole.

5.8 AUDIT TRAIL

There may be times when you need to find out the status of internal use requests for items or services. Internal use requests are requests made by your employees to use your organization's products and services. This can be items such as stationery or new computers. The status of internal use requests can be retrieved from the **Audit trail** report.

This report provides information on the status of each internal use request made. The information is useful in determining the efficiency of fulfilling internal use requests of your organization and can be used to improve the process, where possible.

The report can also inform you of any pending internal use requests that have not been fulfilled, processed, or awaiting replenishment of stock so decisions can be made if these requests need to be expedited.

To view the audit trail of internal use requests, go to Inventory \rightarrow Item management \rightarrow Audit trail, define the relevant criteria and click **Display**. If you select the **Incomplete** check box under the **Show all** section, the report will include the following internal use requests:

- Internal use requests without purchase orders.
- Internal use requests with purchase orders but without purchase invoices.
- Internal use requests with purchase orders where the purchase invoice amount is not the same as the internal use request amount.

Q						001	Audit tra	il - Exact					×
001	<u>F</u> ile <u>I</u>	<u>E</u> dit <u>H</u> e	elp										
© ?													
Our ref.	lter	m code	Project	Request	Request f	EUR	Purchase	Purchased	Purchased EUR	Receipt	Received	Received EUR	Inv
100008	840 N	MAC0007	10000840	1	4	4,520	50000845	1	4,000				
													_
•												Þ	•
Rows	5	1 R	equests		4, 520	Purch	nased		4,000 Receipts			0 Invoiced	
						(<u>R</u> ef	~ '	<u> </u>	Ŋ ur refO	Req		eįpts Clos	e

In the example, the transaction required replenishment of stock so a purchase order was created. This is reflected in the quantities being displayed in the **Purchased** column.

The **Purchase**, **Receipt**, and **Invoice** columns are relevant only if the item needs to be replenished before it can fulfill the internal use request. Also, in the event that there are expense claims, the **Invoice** columns will be filled out with the relevant details. When the requester finally receives the item, the corresponding information will be filled out in the **Issue** column. The totals of all the transactions are displayed at the bottom of the screen.

To obtain further information about each transaction, click the relevant buttons at the bottom of the screen that allow you to view the following:

- **Our ref.** The financial transactions involved.
- **PO** The related purchase order, if available.
- Request The related internal use request.
- Receipts The related receipt of the item, if available.

5.9 ASSORTMENTS

The **Assortments** report displays details of assortments linked to items in your organization. It lists information, such as the item, its sales and cost prices, the markup or margin, and its type. This report can be used to give a quick overview of your organization's categorization of items based on assortments and their respective properties. One item can be linked to more than one assortment. This reflects the possible combinations of properties an item can have in your organization.

You can obtain the **Assortments** report at Inventory \rightarrow Item management \rightarrow Assortments. Define the relevant criteria and click **Start** to generate the report. The **Reference date** option allows you to provide a specific date for which the report should be based on. Depending on your data, different dates may produce a report with different data.

			Assortments			
User Default currency	rosl335646 MYR	Company Reference date	900 Viking Computers: E-Projects/M 09-December-2015	anufacturing	Report	0000000723
Assortment 1 Miscellaneous						
ltem code	Description		Sales price	Cost price	Margin	Туре
HOLIDAY SALE-0001	test assortment		0.0		0.00%	Phantom
PCD240	Voyage D-Series Mo	odel P240	2,488.0	0 1,860.00	25.24%	Standard
Assortment 2						
Software						
ltem code	Description		Sales price	Cost price	Margin	Type
HOLIDAY SALE-0001	test assortment		0.0	0.00	0.00%	Phantom

The report lists the assortments and their corresponding items. It also lists the price lists that are linked to that assortment as specified in Order \rightarrow Price management \rightarrow Price lists.

The **Margin** column as shown in the example can be changed to show the markup of the item. This is defined in System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, under **Order settings**, at the **Profit calculation** option in the **Entry** section.

The **Type** column shows the type of the item. An item with the type **Phantom** means it is not a physical item or a particular part used to manufacture an item. However, phantom items are accounted for because these can be part of a business process. Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ handles this scenario by categorizing these items as phantom items. In the example, the price list attached to the assortment is of type **Phantom**. Other forms of phantom items include extra charges, payment conditions, and shipping methods.

Other item types that can be displayed in this column include **Labor hour** and **Machine hour**. Labor and machine hours are used in managing the productivity of these items. For instance, labor hours are related to the effectiveness of the people in your organization while machine hours relate to your organization's machine resources. These item types can be placed into separate assortments for improved classification.

5.10 LIST OF SERIAL/BATCH NUMBERS

The serial and batch number report is a list of serial or batch numbers that are available in the system. You can use this list to keep track of all your serial and batch numbers and related information such as the validity period and the current status of the number.

Serial numbers are used to uniquely identify individual units of the same or different item. Items with serial numbers are usually items that have a high value or have a service warranty as part of a sales or purchase contract. Batch numbers are used to uniquely identify a large quantity of items that were manufactured in a single production run. The batch numbers are usually used to identify all the final products of the same batch for quality control purposes. If the material or parts used in the production is defective, you can trace other items that may be similarly defective by using the batch numbers.

To view a list of all existing serial and batch numbers in the system, go to Inventory \rightarrow Serial/batch \rightarrow List. You can limit your list of serial or batch numbers by specifying a range of numbers, a range of items, a specific period of time for which the numbers are valid starting on the dates, or range of lot numbers in the **Range** section.

You can sort the order of the list of serial and batch numbers by selecting the relevant option at **Sort by** to sort by date, serial or batch numbers in ascending order, and an alphabetical order of the items. You can further limit the serial or batch numbers that will be displayed in the report based on the status by selecting **Active** or **Blocked** at **Status**.

You can also choose whether or not to display the lot numbers for the respective serial or batch numbers. Lot numbers identify items that share the same production and resultant characteristics, for example the same physical properties, evaluated at the same production costs or quality. Lot numbers can be used to identify serial or batch numbers that originated from the specific lot of the same production batch.

			Serial numbe	15			
User	yong294651	Company	932 MacBean NL	Report	0000000	0506	
Serial number Item Start date End date	Ali Ali Ali Ali			Lot number Sort by Status	All Date All		
Serial number	Description		Item	Description	Start	End	Statu
219FVIJ 219FVI3 54GWF21 54GWF21 6V55021 83GWF21 9F5221 9F05221 80GWF21 123452 123452 200900104 201000321 201001653 MAALMACHINE VERPAKKINGSMACHINE VERPAKKINGSMACHINE VERPAKKINGSMACHINE VERPAKKINGSMACHINE 88-bX-5N 80-LPS-8 82-2697-3 RS-RF-78 123849 1 BF5E ED12	DELL Latitude D620 DELL Latitude D620 Dell OptiPlex GX520 Dell OptiPlex GX520 Dell OptiPlex GX620 Dell OptiPlex GX620 Dell OptiPlex GX520 DELL Latitude D630 DELL OPTIPLEX GX520 I23452 MACD02 - 20003 123457 126889 Roode Pelikaan Omega F DEMO: Roode Pelikaan F DEMO: Roode Pelikaan DEMO: Roode Pelikaan E DEMO: Roode Pelikaan E DEMO: Roode Pelikaan F Waalmachine koffe Verpakkingsmachine koff VW Caddy VW Transporter 123849 Grand cafe de Zeven He	2 stolpen 400V ergamo 6412 iore 3-groeps ïe	IN VENTARIS IN VENTARIS MACDIO1 MACDOO1 MACDOO1 MACDOO1 MACDINES MACH	Coffee table - Beige Machines Machines Machines Machines Machines Machines	30/9/2010 30/9/200 30/9/200 30/9/200 30/9/200 30/9/200 30/9/200 30/9/200 30/	1/6/2011 1/6/2011 1/6/2011 1/6/2014 1/6/2014 1/5/2013 28/12/2013 28/12/2013 1/11/2014 1/2/2015 1/2/2011 1/2/2015 1/2/2015 1/2/2011 1/5/2015 1/12/2011 18/10/2011	Adive Adive
nternal Exact Globe 2003	Enterprise contract			1 of 1		2	7/2/20:

5.11 DELIVERED SERIAL/BATCH NUMBERS

The delivered serial or batch number report displays a list of serial or batch numbers for items used in the fulfillment of requests such as sales orders, internal use requests, warehouse transfers, and production orders. You can use the delivered serial or batch number report to track the items that have been delivered from your inventory.

The serial or batch numbers are recorded for quality control, marketing, and customer service purposes. For example, if you receive a complaint on a defective car brake and the cause of the defect is a part or the raw material that might be present in other units of the same item, you can then track, retrieve, and replace the other units with the same batch numbers. Serial numbers can be used for recording customer complaints for items like computers where after-sales services are provided free of charge within the period of warranty.

To generate the delivered serial or batch number report, go to Inventory \rightarrow Serial/batch \rightarrow Delivered. The amount of serial or batch numbers that have been delivered over a long period of time may be considerably large. You can choose to display a specific set of serial or batch numbers by selecting the relevant criteria, such as the warehouse it was delivered from, the request types fulfilled by the serial or batch numbers, the serial or batch numbers by a specific supplier, the serial or batch numbers that were sent to a specific person, requests that were fulfilled on a specific date, a range of items or items from a specific lot.

The delivered serial or batch number report contains information about the delivered serial or batch numbers, such as the item, lot number, the serial validity period, the warehouse the item was stored in and delivered from, the types of requests that were fulfilled, and the request number.

			C	elivered				
User	yong294651	Company	932	MacBean NL		Report	0000000440	
Warehouse Sales order type Supplier Debtor Person	All All All All All			Fulfillment date Serial number Item Lot number	All All All All			
MAC0001								
Serial number 1238452 123849 M110236 M110237 M110238 M110238 M110240 M110241 Total	Description MX 3 Installatic P20003 P20023 - 6 machines P20023 - 6 machines	Start 30/9/2010 15/10/2010 22/1/2011 22/1/2011 22/1/2011 22/1/2011 22/1/2011	End	Reference Cafe Hout Grand Cafe de Zeu Chicken Ormer (n Chicken Ormer (n Chicken Ormer (n Chicken Ormer (n Chicken Ormer (n Chicken Ormer (n	1 egion zuid 1 egion zuid 1 egion zuid 1 egion zuid 1 egion zuid 1 egion zuid 1	50 no. 20020 20003 20023 20023 20023 20023 20023 20023	Type Sales order Sales order Sales order Sales order Sales order Sales order Sales order	Quantity Unit 1.000 stuk 1.000 stuk
MAC0002								
Serial number M3862732 Total	Description	Start 30/9/2010	End	Reference Cafe de Lantaarn	Wrh. 1	50 no. 20001	Type Sales order	Quantity Unit
MAC0003								
Serial number 125567 Total	Description Koppenwarmer	Start 30/9/2010	End	Reference Chinees restauran		SO no. 20012	Type Sales order	Quantity Unit 1.000 stuk 1.000 stuk
MAC0004, Cof	fee table - Beige							
Serial number 126889 Total	Description	Start 30/9/2010	End	Reference Kaffee und Kuche		SO no. 20015	Type Sales order	Quantity Unit
Internal Exact Globe	2003 Enterprise contract			1 of 3	3			28/2/2012

5.12 RESERVED SERIAL/BATCH NUMBERS

You can use the reserved serial or batch numbers report to display information on serial or batch numbers that have been reserved by existing open requests. This report contains information on reserved serial or batch numbers, such as the sales order debtor, warehouse the serial number item is stored, sales order number, and the expected fulfillment date.

This report is useful to identify the serial or batch numbers in your inventory that are already reserved, and the items and the requests the serial or batch numbers are reserved for so that you can accurately plan the allocation of limited stock.

You can then use this information to plan for fulfillment in case of shortage of stock and to avoid allocating reserved serial numbers to other open orders.

To generate the reserved serial or batch number report, go to Inventory \rightarrow Serial/batch \rightarrow Reservations. You can use the report criteria to target specific serial or batch numbers and reduce the volume of serial or batch numbers that will be displayed in the report.

You can choose to display the reserved serial or batch numbers that are specific to a warehouse or a range of warehouses, a debtor or a range of debtors, sales orders within a range of expected fulfillment dates, an item or a range of items, and a lot number or a range of lot numbers. You can also display the lot number (if any) for the respective serial or batch numbers in the report by selecting the **Lot number** check box.

			Reserved					
User	leow181225	Company	900 Vikings Computers (IE-Tr	raining)			Report	00000000441
Warehouse Debtor Fulfillment date	All All All		item Lot number		AI AI			
WIRE-RESERV	E, reserved wire							
Serial number VER 100001 VER 100002	Description	End	Reference 003, Agathae Business Solutio 004, Telio Properties Sdn Bhd		SO no. 20000038 20000107	Type Sales order Sales order	Fulf.date 11-01-06 09-05-07	Quantity Unit 1- 1-

5.13 EXPIRED SERIAL/BATCH NUMBERS

The expired serial or batch number report can be used to display the serial or batch numbers that are no longer valid for use. Expired serial or batch numbers are numbers that have an end date that is earlier than the current date in the system.

You can use this report to identify expired serial or batch numbers and view the expiry details of active serial or batch numbers. The expired serial or batch number report contains information about the serial or batch numbers, such as the end date (if any), the number of days before the serial or batch numbers expire or the number of days after expiry, the quantity, reserved quantity, and the quantity fulfilled. This is useful so that you can avoid fulfilling expired serial or batch numbers to customers.

To generate the expired serial or batch number report, go to Inventory \rightarrow Serial/batch \rightarrow Expiry date. You can use the report criteria to display the specific expired serial or batch numbers and reduce the volume of serial or batch numbers that will be displayed in the report.

You can choose to display the expiry information for the serial or batch numbers that are specific to a warehouse or a range of warehouses, a debtor or a range of debtors, a date or a range of dates after which the serial or batch numbers are considered invalid, an item or a range of items, and a lot number or a range of lot numbers. You can display only the serial or batch numbers that are still valid by clicking the **Expired** check box. You can also display the lot number (if any) for the respective serial or batch numbers in the report by selecting the **Lot number** check box.

			E	xpiry date				
User	leow181225	Company	900	Vikings Computers (IE-T	raining)	Report	0000000444	
Warehouse Supplier Reference date Serial number	All All 06-06-07 All		ttem Lot n Expir	umber ed	All All Yes			
GC: V200 Game	Console Model 200	8						
Serial number	Description		End	Expires	Quantity	Reserved	Used	Free Sis. po
Serial number			End 01-01-06	Expires -521 Days	Quantity 1.000	Reserved 0.000	Used 0.000	Free Sis. po 1.000 Set
Serial number 10002	Description							
	Description		01-01-08	-521 Days	1.000	0.000	0.000	1.000 Set

6. ADVANCED FEATURES

Besides the basic features, Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ also provides advanced features to handle additional functions for inventory management. In this chapter, the external numbering functionality is explained from the setting up stage up to its applications in the inventory operations.

6.1 USING EXTERNAL NUMBERING

External numbering is a functionality offered by Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+ to provide you the flexibility to use the external numbers in your business documents apart from the standard numbering system based on the **Entry**, **Our reference**, and **Your reference** numbers. In addition, the external numbering functionality caters to users in some countries where the legislations require businesses to use a numbering system, in which documents generated from different business transaction types are to use different sets of numbers.

In certain countries, these numbers must meet specific format requirements, such as to include prefixes and masks. For these reasons, you can now choose to enable the external numbering functionality in your system to cater to the additional needs of your business. In line with the external numbering functionality, you can define the numbering rules and the number ranges for the external numbers. The system will then assign external numbers for the specific business transactions based on the defined numbering rules and number ranges. Meanwhile, the external numbers will be printed on the final printed documents if you have added the external number field in the document layout.

6.1.1 Setting up external numbering functionality

Before you can use the external numbering functionality, you need to enable this functionality in Exact Globe Next/Exact Globe+. After you have enabled the functionality, you will then be able to see two new menu paths, namely System \rightarrow Logistics \rightarrow External numbering \rightarrow Numbering rules and System \rightarrow Logistics \rightarrow External numbering \rightarrow External numbers.

To set up the external number functionality:

- 1. Go to System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings.
- 2. Click Numbers settings under the Settings section.
- 3. Under the General section, select the Use external numbering check box.
- 4. Click **Save**. The message "Changes will only take effect after restarting the software" will be displayed.
- 5. Click **OK**.
- 6. Click **Close** on the main menu to exit the software, and then restart the software.

6.1.2 Creating numbering rules

After you have enabled the external numbering setting, you can create the numbering rules which will determine the external numbers to be generated. By creating the numbering rules, you can define the transaction types, optional conditions, and number ranges to be used to generate the external numbers. The system will refer to these criteria when assigning the external numbers to your business documents.

2	001 External numbering - Exact	-	×
001 <u>File E</u> dit <u>H</u> elp			
+ D 💾 🗩 🕪 🕼 ^ ~	© 0		
> Numbering rule code	Inactive		
Description	¹²		
Basics Number ranges			
Transactions Available	Selected		
Cash receipt Commission invoice Direct credit note Direct invoice Interbranch transfer fulfilment Internal return Letter of credit Payment Production disassemble fulfilment < > Optional conditions	>>> <<		
Number of optional conditions Optional condition 1	None O one O two		
Optional condition 2			
	Save	+ Ney	<u>v</u> <u>C</u> lose

To create numbering rules:

- 1. Go to System \rightarrow Logistics \rightarrow External numbering \rightarrow Numbering rules.
- 2. Click New.
- 3. Type a code for the new numbering rule at **Numbering rule code**. This is mandatory.
- 4. At **Description**, type a description for the new numbering rule. This is mandatory. Click to type the description in foreign languages which have been defined in the **Descriptions in list boxes** section at **General settings**.
- 5. Under the Basics tab in the Transactions section, the Available box lists all available transaction types which you can select for use in the numbering rule. Select the transaction type(s), and then click is to move the selected transaction type(s) to the Selected box. By doing this, you are selecting the transaction type(s) to be used in the numbering rule. To move any of the transaction types from the Selected box to the Available box, select the transaction type(s) in the Selected box, and then click is By doing this, you can delete the transaction type(s) selected earlier to be used in the numbering rule.
- 6. At **Number of optional conditions** in the **Optional conditions** section, you can select **None**, **one**, or **two** to define the number of optional conditions you want to use in the numbering rule. Use optional conditions to further define the conditions of every numbering rule. These optional conditions are important while generating the external numbers within a number range and at the same time, these conditions help to speed up data retrieval in reports.

- 7. Based on the Number of optional conditions you have defined, you can select the optional conditions to be used at Optional condition 1 and Optional condition 2. If you select None at Number of optional conditions, the Optional condition 1 and Optional condition 2 fields will not be enabled. If you select one, only Optional condition 1 will be enabled. If you select two at Number of optional conditions, both fields will be enabled. The options available for selection are Cost center, Person, or Warehouse. For an existing numbering rule which is linked to number ranges, the Optional conditions section will be disabled.
- 8. Click **Save** to save the numbering rule. By default, a newly-created numbering rule will be activated. As such, when you are creating a numbering rule, the **Inactive** check box will be disabled. The check box will only be enabled after you have clicked **Save** to save the new numbering rule.
- 9. Under the **Number** ranges tab, click + **New** to create number ranges for the numbering rule. You will see the **Number range** screen, as displayed in the following:

8	001 Number range - Exact	×
001 <u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit	Help	
+ 🗗 💾 📁	«~ @ (1) (C) (2)	
Cost centre Optional condition	ion 2 Select	
 Mask Number range Preview 		
Valid	18/11/2015 To	
	Save New	× <u>C</u> lose

- 10. Optional condition 1 and Optional condition 2 will be disabled if you have selected None at Number of optional conditions in the Optional conditions section. If you have defined to use one or two optional conditions and selected the optional conditions in the Optional conditions section, the label of the Optional condition 1 and Optional condition 2 fields will be named according to the optional conditions you have selected. For example, if you have selected to use Cost center as the optional condition 1 in the Optional conditions section, the Optional condition 1 in the Optional conditions section, the Optional condition 1 in the Optional conditions section.
- 11. Next, click select to select the optional condition values to be used to generate the external numbers if you are using the optional conditions. For example, if you have selected to use Cost center as the optional condition 1, click Select to select the cost center(s) to use the number ranges for transactions involving the selected cost center(s). In this example, you will see the Optional condition screen displaying all the active cost centers in the system. Select the cost center(s) and click Select to select the cost center(s) that the number ranges will be created for. A green check mark will be displayed under the Select column to indicate that the cost center(s) has been selected. Click Deselect all to clear the selection of all the selected cost center or click Select again. Click Close to exit. By doing this, you can create different number ranges for transactions involving different cost centers or one number range for use by multiple cost centers.
- 12. At Mask, type the mask for the number range. This information is mandatory. You can type up to 30 characters in this field. The mask is case-sensitive and it can contain a separator as well as any symbol, except "#" and "¿" (ENTER key on the keyboard) when you define a prefix for the mask. A <space> is allowed in between the mask; however it cannot be placed before or after the mask as all spaces will be trimmed by the system during the numbers generation. In addition, the mask must represent the running number format which is indicated by the "#" symbol. For example, to create a mask with prefix "ABC" and the running number to contain three digits, you can type "SALEINVOICE-###" at Mask. You should type at least one "#" at Mask to represent the running number format in the number range.

- 13. Type the start and end numbers for the number range at Number range and To. This information is mandatory. The maximum number of digits allowed will depend on the mask you have defined. For example, if you have typed "SALEINVOICE-###" at Mask, the maximum number of digits that you can type as the start and end numbers in the number range will be three as indicated by the three "#" symbols in the mask. The start and end numbers must not be equal to "0" and the start number must be a smaller number than the end number in the number range. For example, you type "1" at Number range and "999" at To. The resulting number range will start from "SALEINVOICE-001" to "SALEINVOICE-999" as shown at Preview.
- 14. At Valid and To, type or select the validity date range for the number range. This determines the life cycle of the number range. By default, the start date of the validity period will show the current date when you create a number range. The start date is mandatory. However, you can leave the To field empty. You may want to do this to use the number range for as long as you desire, and only enter an end date when your business requires so. Once an external number from the number range has been used, you cannot change the start date of the number range. In addition, the validity period of the number range cannot overlap with the validity period of other existing number ranges in the numbering rule. For example, you have an existing number range now with a validity period from 01/01/2007 to 31/12/2007. If you create a number range is overlapping with one of the existing number range's criteria: Life cycle" once you click Save to save the new number range.
- 15. Click **OK** to close the message, and then change the start date so that it will not overlap with the existing number range.
- 16. Click **Save** to save the number range.

Note:

When you create a number range, by default, the **Inactive** check box is disabled. This means the status of a new number range is automatically set to **Active**. The check box will be enabled only when you edit an existing active number range. Select the check box to deactivate the number range. Once you have selected the check box, the message "Set to inactive?" will be displayed. Click **Yes** to deactivate the number range, and then type the reason for deactivating the number range at **Note**. Click **Save** to save the note. Once you have deactivated a number range, you are not allowed to activate that number range. The system will delete all the unused external numbers in the number range and update the end number of the number range to equal to the last assigned number. If the number range has not been used, the deactivation process will reset the start and end numbers of the number range to "0".

6.1.3 External numbering in interbranch transfer

The external numbering in interbranch transfers is applied at the following menu paths:

- Inventory \rightarrow Warehouse management \rightarrow Interbranch transfers.
- Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Fulfillment, and then the Interbranch transfer option in the Selection section.
- Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Interbranch transfer receipt.

The external numbering depends on the **Use intermediate warehouse** setting under the **Interbranch transfers** section in **Inventory settings** at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings:

- If the Use intermediate warehouse check box is not selected, then the fulfillment process will refer to the transaction type Interbranch transfer fulfillment in the external numbering rule.
- If the Use intermediate warehouse check box is selected, then the fulfillment process will refer to the transaction type Interbranch transfer fulfillment in the external numbering rule. The receiving process will refer to the transaction type Interbranch transfer receipt in the external numbering rule.

Note:

When the **Use external numbering** check box in the **General** section at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, under **Numbers settings** is selected, and the interbranch transfer is linked to an active numbering rule with matching optional condition values, the external numbers will be assigned to the issuing and/or receiving slips. An attachment will always be generated regardless of whether the transactions and range definitions match.

This feature allows saving of the interbranch transfer transaction documents into the system. To enable this, two document types which are **IBT (Interbranch Transfer) issuing slip** and **IBT (Interbranch Transfer) receiving slip** have been added at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow CRM \rightarrow Document types. The documents printed will be saved based on the **Use intermediate warehouse** setting under the **Interbranch transfers** section in **Inventory settings** at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings:

- If the Use intermediate warehouse check box is not selected, then the interbranch transfer documents will be saved under the IBT issuing slip document type.
- If the Use intermediate warehouse check box is selected, then the following applies:
 - If the document is generated from an issuing process, then the document will be saved under the IBT issuing slip document type.
 - If the document is generated from a receiving process, then the document will be saved under the IBT receiving slip document type.

Note:

The printed documents can be reprinted from the documents entry at CRM \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Documents, under the **IBT issuing slip** and **IBT receiving slip** document types respectively.

6.1.4 External numbering in stock count

The external numbering in interbranch transfers is applied at Inventory \rightarrow Warehouse management \rightarrow Counts. The stock count refers to the **Stock count** transaction type in the external numbering rule.

Note:

When the **Use external numbering** check box under the General section at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, under **Numbers settings** is selected, and the stock count is linked to an active numbering rule with matching optional condition values, an external number will be assigned to the stock count document. If there is no stock movement where quantity = '0', then an external number will not be assigned to the transaction. If an error occurs during the stock count processing, the transaction will not be rolled back but it will be registered in the system with an external number without an attachment. The status of the linked external number will be set to Void.

6.1.5 External numbering in internal use

The external numbering in internal use is applied at the following menu paths:

- Inventory → Entries → Internal use.
- Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Fulfillment, and then the **Internal use** option under the **Selection** section.

Internal use refers to the **Internal fulfillment** and **Internal return** transaction types in the external numbering rule.

Note:

When the **Use external numbering** check box under the **General** section at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, under **Number settings** is selected, and the internal use transaction is linked to an active numbering rule with matching optional condition values, the external number will be assigned to the issuing or return slip. If the internal use transaction meets the range definition in the external numbering rule, then an attachment with an external number will be generated regardless of whether the printout is required. If the internal use transaction does not meet the range definition in the external numbering rule, and the print option is selected, then an attachment will not be generated.

This feature allows you to save the internal use transaction documents into the system. To enable this, the **Internal use** document type has been added in **Document types** at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow CRM.

Note:

The printed documents can be reprinted from the document entries at CRM \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Documents, under the **Internal use** document type.

If the **Use external numbering** check box under the **General** section at System \rightarrow General \rightarrow Settings, under **Number settings** is selected, and there is an active numbering rule defined for internal fulfillment or internal return, then the multiple selection feature for multiple fulfillments of internal use will be disabled.

Note:

Multiple selection feature is where you can select more than one line of internal use in the results section by selecting the **Internal use** option under the **Selection** section at Inventory \rightarrow Entries \rightarrow Fulfillment. You can press the SHIFT key, and then select the internal use lines simultaneously. For a random selection of multiple lines, you can hold down the CTRL key, and then select the internal use lines simultaneously.

6.1.6 External numbering in overviews and search criteria

When you are using the external numbering feature in your inventory application, the external number field or column will be added in the following overview, search, and report screens:

To view external numbers in item transactions:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Warehouse management \rightarrow Warehouses.
- 2. Select a warehouse.
- 3. Click Open. The Maintain warehouses screen will be displayed.
- 4. Click Item transactions. The Item transactions screen will be displayed.
- 5. Next, type or select an item code at **Item**. This information is mandatory.
- 6. Type or select a range of transaction dates at **Transaction date** to display the transactions of items with the corresponding dates selected or select the **All** check box to display all transactions of items regardless of dates.
- 7. Click **Edit** to display the item transactions.
- 8. In the **Item transactions** screen, the **External number** column displays the external numbers for all types of item transactions, such as **Receipt**, **Fulfillment**, **Count**, and **Returns**.
- 9. Click Close to exit.

To view external numbers in overview of warehouse cards:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Warehouse management \rightarrow Cards.
- 2. Select a warehouse.
- 3. Click Card. The Card: Warehouse location screen will be displayed.
- 4. Click Filter to expand the search criteria.
- 5. In the search criteria, define the external number at **External number** to search for financial transactions of the warehouse that correspond with the defined external number.
- 6. Click **Refresh** to display the financial transactions of the warehouse.
- 7. In the results section, the **External number** column displays the external number that corresponds with each financial transaction of the warehouse.
- 8. Click Close to exit.

To view external numbers in logistics reconciliations:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Warehouse management \rightarrow Reconcile.
- 2. Click Advanced.
- 3. Type an external number or a range of external numbers at **External number**, or select the **All** check box to display the logistics transactions that correspond with the defined external number(s).
- Click Zoom to display the logistics transactions in the Reconcile screen. The logistics transactions of items, such as receipts and invoices that correspond with the external number(s) filled in, are displayed under the External number column.
- 5. Click **Export** to export the displayed data to Microsoft Excel. In the Microsoft Excel report, the external numbers will be displayed under the **External number** column.
- 6. Select an item transaction in the **Reconcile** screen and click **Edit** to make changes to the item transaction.
- 7. The **Change: data** screen will display the corresponding external number for each of the item transactions under the **External number** column.

To view external numbers in inventory transactions report:

- 1. Go to Inventory \rightarrow Reports \rightarrow Transactions.
- 2. In the search criteria, type an external number at External number.
- Click Search to display the corresponding inventory transactions. The External number column in the inventory transaction report will display the corresponding external number for each inventory transaction.
- 4. Click **Print** to print the inventory transactions report.

To view external numbers in item cards:

- 1. Go to any one of the following menu paths:
 - Inventory \rightarrow Items \rightarrow Cards
 - Invoice \rightarrow Items \rightarrow Cards
 - Order \rightarrow Items \rightarrow Cards
 - POS \rightarrow Items \rightarrow Cards
 - Purchase \rightarrow Items \rightarrow Cards
 - Project → Items → Cards
- 2. Select an item and click Card. The Item transaction card screen will be displayed.
- 3. Click **Zoom** for a detailed view of the item transaction.
- 4. Click Filter, and then type an external number at External number.
- 5. Click **Refresh** to display the corresponding financial transactions of the item.
- 6. In the results section, the **External number** column displays the external number for each financial transaction of the item.
- 7. Click **Export** to export the displayed data to Microsoft Excel. In the Microsoft Excel report, the **External number** column displays the external number for each financial transaction of the item. Save the report, if required.
- 8. Click Close to close the Items transaction card screen and return to the previous screen.
- 9. Select an item at any one of the menu paths listed above and click **Print** to print the financial transaction report.
- 10. In the **Item card** screen, define the relevant criteria and click **Start** to generate a financial transaction report for the selected item.
- 11. In the **Report** screen, the **External number** field displays the corresponding external number for each financial transaction.

APPENDIX 1: PRODUCT UPDATE CHANGES

Product Update	Chapter
411	All chapters
404	2.5.1, 4.2
403	All chapters